OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date:

Tuesday 12 October 2021

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Marianna Masters (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan Mohammed and Councillor Martin Tiedemann

Co-optees
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Frank Roberts (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Simon Funnell (Parent Governor Co-optee)
Baboucarr Jallow (Parent Governor Co-optee)

Substitute Members
Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Joanna Reynolds, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George and Councillor Jessica Leigh

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Maria Burton, Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Monday 4 October 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Monday 11 October.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Monday 11 October. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend the
meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1-8

1

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To agree the minutes of the meeting of 14 July 2021 as an
accurate record of the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the
Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they
must withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote
on that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.

3

Lambeth's climate emergency response: progress update
Contact for enquiries: Hannah Jameson, Assistant Director for
Sustainable Development and Climate Change Response,
Sustainable Growth and Opportunity, 020 7926 6918,
hjameson@lambeth.gov.uk

9 - 24

4

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Commission: Draft Report
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic Services
Officer, 020 7926 8703, mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

25 - 66

5

Work Programme
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic Services
Officer, 020 7926 8703, mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

67 - 110

Page 1

Agenda Item 1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday 14 July 2021 at 7.00 pm
Committee Room (1.16) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW
Members Present:

Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary
Atkins (Vice-Chair), Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor Marianna
Masters (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Martin
Tiedemann and Councillor Scott Ainslie (Substitute)

Apologies:

Councillor Jonathan Bartley and Councillor Joshua Lindsey

Also present
online:

Councillor Lucy Caldicott

1

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2021 be approved as an accurate
record of the proceedings.

3

Care Home Provision and Delivery in Lambeth
Councillor Lucy Caldicott, Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care (Job Share), introduced
the report and provided an oversight of care home provision in Lambeth. Councillor Caldicott
also paid tribute to officers, who had supported care homes, and to care home staff, who had
supported service users, during the coronavirus pandemic.
Jane Bowie, Director of Integrated Commissioning (Adults), Jennifer Burgess, Integrated
Commissioning Manager, Michelle Homer, Senior Commissioning Officer, and Ese Iyasere,
Public Health Specialist, provided information on:
-

Care home provision across the borough, including how it functioned as part of the Lambeth
Together system.

-

The demand for, and commissioning of, care home placements, including how
commissioners worked with care home providers and other partners.

-

The importance of understanding future need. It was highlighted that this would be central to
future commissioning and that a review of future demand would be undertaken to ensure the
right type of support, at the right time, with sufficient capacity was available to support the
most vulnerable.

-

Monitoring and inspection arrangements, including the work of the Care Quality

Page 2
Commission, which allowed the quality and safety of provider services to be measured and
reviewed.
-

The work that had been carried out to support care home staff to better understand infection,
prevention and control, with training provided on matters such as handwashing and wearing
equipment correctly.

In response to the coronavirus pandemic, officers explained that consolidated support had been
brought together under one commissioning team. The committee was informed that the team
had established daily and regular contact with all care homes. It was highlighted that the
creation of a regular forum, together with regular contact by phone, had supported care homes
during very challenging times in a number of ways, including the processing and interpretation
of guidance, reporting and testing, managing deaths, training and support for managers and
staff, financial support and assistance with equipment.
As set out in the report, officers highlighted that a shortage of Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) had initially been a real concern for staff. This had been addressed with a swift local
response, with the council investing and providing free PPE supplies for all care homes, in
advance of a national ordering process being established.
The Committee also heard from a number of witnesses from across the home care system,
including service users, families and carers of residents, Healthwatch Lambeth, Lambeth Keep
Our NHS Public and those who worked in care homes across the borough.
Service users, families and carers of residents highlighted:
-

Difficulties in finding clear information about care home provision and how options available
fitted together with other services provided by the council, NHS and third sector.

-

Complexities in relation to care costs and funding available.

-

The need for learning from the pandemic to be implemented and to ensure the right type of
support was available, especially for those with complex support needs.

-

The importance of involving families and carers in decision making and in developing
individual care plans.

-

Concerns about the lack of information on the Covid-19 status of other residents and staff
who worked in care homes

-

Frustrations in relation to visiting arrangements and how life had been restricted in care
homes during the pandemic.

Representatives from Lambeth Keep Our NHS Public informed the committee that they had
been approached by local residents who had raised concerns about the transfer of residents
from Minnie Kidd House to new care placements. This was due to fire safety issues and the
buildings suitability for purpose. The following points were highlighted:
-

Minnie Kidd House provided specialist accommodation for people with complex needs. The
accommodation was run by Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.

-

There had been failures in relation to relatives’ involvement in both care planning and

Page 3
general communication during the enforced moves.
-

Concerns about limited follow up and clinical involvement from the NHS in regular care
homes, especially for older residents with complex needs.

-

Concerns in relation to privatising / contracting out care through commissioning.

-

The need for scrutiny to look more closely at decision making and next steps in relation to
the future use of the building.

Representatives from Lambeth Keep Our NHS Public concluded by stating there was a need to
keep services available at Minnie Kidd House.
Catherine Pearson, Chief Executive, and Sara Lyon, Engagement Lead for Older People,
informed the committee of the work Healthwatch Lambeth had been involved with in relation to
care homes over a number of years. This highlighted the importance of working with families
and residents to ensure care planning was person centred and the need to demystify care home
arrangements by providing clear guidance and advice. The committee was also informed that
Healthwatch had legal powers to visit health and social care services and to see them in action.
It was explained that enter and view visits had been carried out in October 2019, before the
coronavirus pandemic. Following these visits, the care homes had committed to engagement
with relatives in a number of ways, including through family meetings, an open-door policy and
newsletters.
Staff representatives from St Mary’s Care Home, 25 Garrads Road Care Home and Excelcare
provided information on a range of matters, including:
-

The logistics of running both a large and small care home. This included information in
relation to recruitment, looking after staff, taking referrals and managing deaths.

-

The Covid-19 vaccination programme. It was explained that this had involved considerable
work to facilitate a roll out to both residents and care home staff.

-

The ways in which care home staff could report issues of concern.

-

The impact of the coronavirus pandemic. It was highlighted that staff had responded with
great professionalism and commitment. However, it was recognised that, after 15 months of
intense and relentless pressure, that care home staff and managers were exhausted.

During the discussion that followed, it was noted that local authorities had a duty to assess the
needs of anyone who might have a need for support. It was highlighted that a social needs

assessment was the first step to arranging care and for establishing whether service
users were eligible for financial support from the council. In response to questions,
information was provided on various legislation, including the Care and Standards Act
2000 and the Care Act 2014.
The committee was informed that Lambeth utilised a “home first” approach, wherever possible,
and had developed a model of care that allowed people to retain their independence. This, in
turn, had driven an improved and more responsive care market. During the discussion, the
importance of community interaction was highlighted as a way to improve health and wellbeing
for residents living in care homes.
In response to questions about the complexities of the care system, officers provided
information on the needs assessment process, needs assessment eligibility, the different

Page 4
agencies involved, and the options available for paying for care. It was noted that care homes
were paid for in the following ways: local authority funding: where the council would fund some,
or all of the care; self-funding: where the person being cared for (or their family or a friend)
would pay all care costs; and, in some circumstances, with strict eligibility criteria, the NHS
would pay all care home fees for people with complex health needs.
In response to questions about care planning, it was explained that following an assessment a
support plan was developed. It was noted that engaging with family and friends was an
important component of person-centred care while details were provided on how plans were
reviewed over time. Issues in relation to transferring a resident from one care home to another
were also considered.
The committee was informed that Lambeth Together had worked closely with care homes since
December 2020 to deliver the Covid-19 vaccination programme. Information was provided on
the work of the Care Home Vaccine Uptake Taskforce and on vaccination uptake, for both
residents and staff. In addition, it was explained that the care home workforce would be
impacted by legislation, effective from October 2021, that would make the Covid-19 vaccination
mandatory for staff working in care homes. It was noted that initial feedback on this had been
mixed and that the council would work closely with providers to prepare for this.
During discussion of this item the guillotine fell at 9.00 pm. RESOLVED: That the meeting
continue for a further period of up to 30 minutes.
It was noted that a critical step towards delivering more integrated working between care homes
and the wider NHS community was to foster parity of esteem, with care homes being recognised
as critical in supporting Lambeth’s most vulnerable residents.
A wide range of other matters were also considered, including: lessons learnt from the
coronavirus pandemic, the role of the voluntary sector; challenges in relation to dealing with
winter pressures; the importance of providing support to residents when moving into a care
home; the importance of having suitable services available for younger adults, concerns about
the coordination of palliative care; and the process for challenging decisions relating to care
and/or an assessment.
RESOLVED:
It was recommended that:
1. To improve person centred care planning and ensure care pathways were joined up and
understood by the public, Adult Social Care should:
-

Develop guidance, including a plain English route map, to help service users and
carers navigate the system;

-

Provide a single point of contact for questions about care home provision and
delivery in Lambeth; and

-

Ensure each care home resident had a dedicated point of contact so both service
users and carers know who to contact if they have a question about their care.

2. The Council’s support for care homes during the coronavirus pandemic, including the
provision of advice, guidance, training and equipment, be commended.
3. Care homes and carers be thanked for providing service users with outstanding support

Page 5
during the coronavirus pandemic.
4. The Council introduces a care worker of the year award, to recognise the outstanding care
provided across the borough.
5. Adult Social Care work across the Council and with colleagues and partners, including
providers, to raise the profile of the work done by care homes and promote opportunities for
a career in care homes.
6. To aid recruitment, to investigate whether it would be possible for Opportunity Lambeth to
work with Care Homes across the borough.
7. The Council signs up to UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter and ensure those working in care
homes receive payment of their salary for periods when they are on sick leave, are given
appropriate training, receive regular appraisals/pay reviews and feel supported.
8. Lessons learnt in relation to Covid-19 should be shared with the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee within 6 – 12 months. This should cover matters in relation to both care home
provision and delivery during the pandemic, with input from service users and carers. To
ensure service users and carers are listened to and heard, thought should be given to the
methodology that is used, and by who, to capture these experiences.
9. All care homes should have a clear, transparent and well publicised complaints procedure,
setting out how to raise concerns freely and confidentially, who to contact and how to
appeal.
10. To help create an atmosphere where workers feel able to report concerns, the Council
should ensure all care homes have a whistleblowing policy and ensure staff are aware that
they can raise concerns freely and confidentially.
11. The Council ensures all care homes hold regular meetings for families and carers, with
suitable safeguards established to support, and hear from, residents who are not
visited/supported by friends or family.
12. An annual report on care homes be provided to both Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet to
provide details on:
-

Monitoring and inspection, including data from the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
and Lambeth’s own commissioners;

-

How CQC ratings in Lambeth compared to other boroughs;

-

The challenges and opportunities for staff and service providers – including
information on staffing levels, vacancies and future staffing requirements;

-

The experiences of service users and carers, including feedback on the care and
services received;

Page 6
-

The number of complaints received as well as lessons learnt; and

-

The impact of Brexit and Covid-19, including the supply of personal protective
equipment (PPE).

13. A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd House, setting out care provided, environmental
issues, including work required for the building to be compliant with fire safety standards,
and next steps, be considered by Overview and Scrutiny at a future committee meeting, with
input from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.
14. To help maximise health and wellbeing in care homes, schemes that increase community
interaction and encourage residents to get involved in local activities, including interaction
with ward councillors, should be supported.
15. An officer briefing on future care models be provided to Councillors.

4

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22
The report presented provided information on the committee’s work programme for 2021/22,
including an update on actions and recommendations arising from previous meetings.
During the discussion it was highlighted that the meeting scheduled for 6 October 2021 would
be brought forward to late September, with a time/date to be confirmed outside of the meeting. It
was noted that this meeting would focus on matters relating to climate change and would
include information on air quality reporting and an update on the citizens’ assembly.
It was noted that a number of requests had been received for Overview and Committee to
consider in relation to covid related expenditure, violence affecting young people / youth
violence and, subject to speaking to the Chair of Corporate Committee, work that had taken
place in relation to covid support fraud checks. The Chair asked for any additional future work
programme suggestions to be circulated via email so that these could be considered ahead of
the next meeting.
RESOLVED: That, subject to the comments above, the work programme and the status of
actions (Appendix 1) be noted.

The meeting ended at 9.29 pm
CHAIR
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Tuesday 21 September 2021
Date of Despatch: Thursday 12 August 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Christian Scade
Tel: 020 7926 0045
E-mail: cscade@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 12 OCTOBER 2021
Report title: Lambeth’s climate emergency response: progress update
Wards: All
Portfolio: Leader of the Council: Councillor Claire Holland
Report Authorised by: Eleanor Purser and Sara Waller: Strategic Directors for Sustainable
Growth and Opportunity
Contact for enquiries: Hannah Jameson, Assistant Director for Sustainable Development and
Climate Change Response, Sustainable Growth and Opportunity, 020 7926 6918,
hjameson@lambeth.gov.uk
REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides an update on the council’s climate emergency response, as requested by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It also provides an update on the recommendations made by the
Committee in July 2020.

FINANCE SUMMARY
None arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To note the update provided in this report.

Page 10
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Council declared a climate emergency in 2019. Since then it has published its first carbon
emissions report, established a dedicated climate response team and created a strategic
programme to bring about the transformation of the council’s operations in order to achieve net
zero carbon by 2030.

1.2

During the last 12 months the council’s climate emergency work has continued to develop and
grow with large structural pieces of work underway to enable the council to take informed and
decisive action over the coming years. This work involves the Council in the role as enabler and
convenor also, as the great majority of the carbon emitted in the borough is by others, and
therefore the Council will be working with key partners over coming months on a Climate Action
Plan which will set out implementation plans for the recommendations from the recent Citizens’
Assembly. This report provides an update on that work and some of the key achievements during
that period.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

Lambeth’s citizens’ assembly
The citizens’ assembly on the climate crisis took place between May and July 2021. The assembly
was convened by the council and its partners to address the question:
Lambeth is facing a climate crisis: How can Lambeth respond to climate change and its causes
quickly, fairly and effectively?

2.2

47 residents, reflective of the borough’s wider population, worked together over the six-week
period to examine evidence, listen to experts, and consider the causes of climate change in
Lambeth, its impacts, and what action we must take. In keeping with the principles of citizens’
assemblies, after over 20 hours of learning and deliberation, the assembly produced 13
recommendations for the borough, including the council, wider public and third sectors, and
business. The recommendations were targeted at the main sources of carbon emissions as
described in our emissions report. These are transport, residential, commercial and industrial.
There were further recommendations relating to ways of working, food, waste and biodiversity.

2.3

The assembly were also asked to consider the principles that decision-makers in Lambeth should
apply as they develop the climate response. We do not know all the decisions we will need to take
to mitigate and adapt to climate change, so understanding how residents would like us to approach
decisions will be important.

2.4

The recommendations and principles, along with more detailed information on the methodology for
recruitment, demographic data for the assembly members, the structure of the assembly and the
process by which the recommendations were arrived at is set out in the final report, published on
the council’s website.

2.5

Alongside the assembly, the council worked with representatives from the Steering Group to
develop a communications and engagement plan to ensure that residents and businesses were
able to follow the work of the assembly and that the assembly was able to hear from local people,
particularly disabled people and young people, and consider their perspectives on the impacts of
climate change and mitigation measures. The conclusions of this engagement were shared with
the assembly for consideration.

2.6

Overall, between May and August 2021 a total of 10,172 subscribers received weekly update
newsletters and campaign social media posts performed well across key performance indicators

Page 11
with over 1.9m Twitter impressions and a total engagement1 of over 1000 across council channels.
The council shared recordings and resources from the assembly on online engagement platform,
Commonplace, receiving over 1000 submissions. The council also hosted 2 focus groups with
Disability Advice Service Lambeth (DASL) and the Youth Council and presented during local and
regional events from Lambeth Forum Network to London Climate Action Week. The council used
its own communications channels to widen engagement around the citizens’ assembly including a
dedicated corporate webpage; three Lambeth Talk entries; JCD screens, BT boards and posters in
over 300 locations around the borough; three Love Lambeth blogs and two press releases gaining
local coverage such as from Brixton Blog.
2.7

2.8

2.9

The feedback from the assembly members on their experience of taking part in the assembly was
overwhelmingly positive; in the feedback survey 100% of assembly members agreed or strongly
agreed that ‘taking part in this citizens’ assembly has been a positive experience’. The full results
of the survey and the qualitative feedback are included in the full report, referenced above.
Next steps
The assembly’s recommendations were presented to full council in September. Members of the
Steering Group, representing partner organisations, assembly members and the borough’s
community and political leadership attended and received the recommendations on behalf of the
borough, with a commitment to consider them and work to implement wherever possible.
A citizens’ assembly is not a research process; there is an obligation on the part of those
commissioning the assembly to consider the recommendations and respond. Therefore, the
council will be engaging with partners, businesses and residents to share the recommendations
and agree what action must be taken. The recommendations give a clear indication of the ambition
that residents have for Lambeth’s climate response; it is incumbent on everyone to look at their
own climate, business or operational plans and see if they match up to that ambition. The collective
climate action plan will be published later this year.

The Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 programme
2.10 The citizens’ assembly will help to inform the development of a climate action plan to reduce the
borough’s carbon emissions and improve its resilience, but the council has already adopted a
target to reach net zero carbon in its operations and estate by 2030 and published the corporate
Carbon Reduction Plan to achieve this.
2.11 To help coordinate the council’s decarbonisation work and the associated projects, a strategic
programme was established in 2020, with oversight from the council’s corporate leadership, and
support and assurance from a cross-organisational programme board. There are a number of
workstreams – themed groups of projects – addressing some of the main sources of carbon
emissions and improving the environment. This next section provides a brief update on the work
that that has taken place under these themes over the last year.
Residential energy and buildings
2.12 This workstream is focused on reducing emissions associated with the council’s own housing stock
and new build. This forms the largest proportion of the council’s carbon emissions and addressing
this will mean ensuring that new development is built to the highest energy efficiency standards,
and that existing stock is retrofitted to improve energy efficiency.
2.13 Recent analysis commissioned by London Councils shows the scale of the retrofit challenge in
Lambeth. It estimates that it would cost £3.7billion to retrofit all homes in Lambeth, including owner
1

Engagement includes likes, shares and comments

Page 12
occupied, private rented and social housing. There will be significant health and wellbeing and
economic benefits from this investment, but at present there is not the finance or policy in place to
enable retrofit at this scale.
2.14 In the absence of a comprehensive national strategy on retrofit, the council is using its own
investment, alongside grant funding, to begin retrofitting its own stock. The council was successful
in being selected as part of the National Net Zero Retrofit Accelerator programme and secured
approximately £1m to pilot a deep retrofit of 40 properties in Myatts Field and establish a Net Zero
procurement framework for other social landlords to use. Along with seven other organisations
across the UK, this highly innovative pilot uses the Energiesprong approach, helping to test and
develop financially sustainable models of retrofit. More information on the programme and the
Energiesprong approach can be found here. The learning from this pilot is being used to inform the
development of the wider council retrofit programme. It is expected that 100 council properties will
be retrofitted over the next 12 months, with that figure rapidly increasing across the decade.
2.15 The council has also been successful in securing funding through the Green Home Grants Local
Authority Delivery scheme. This funding targets low income, low energy efficiency owner occupied
homes. The funding allows councils to put in place energy efficiency improvements up to value of
£10,000, helping to address fuel poverty and improve health and wellbeing. Through a partnership
with 6 other boroughs, Lambeth is due to undertake works on 53 homes this financial year. The
scheme has been promoted through targeted letters, and referrals from VCS organisations and
council services like to be in contact with these residents.
2.16 Alongside these short-term retrofit projects, the council is developing a longer-term housing
investment programme and is in the process of appointing a strategic partner who can help to
accelerate this work; building a more accurate picture of the condition of our stock, and a
programme of works to improve energy efficiency as well as address other priorities such as fire
safety.
2.17 Councils do not currently have the financial resources to retrofit their housing on the scale and at
the pace that will be required to meet net zero by 2030 and it is clear that funding from central
government will be required. Within London it is recognised that investment in retrofit will also have
significant benefits for health and wellbeing, employment and the local economy, and therefore
forms an important part of the city’s economic recovery strategy. Lambeth is therefore working with
other London boroughs to see how we can make faster progress on retrofit by sharing knowledge
and expertise and attracting the financial investment we need.
Non-residential energy and buildings
2.18 The council owns a range of non-residential property, such as office buildings, parks buildings,
community buildings and schools that will also need works to improve their energy efficiency. The
council has been successful in securing approximately £8million from the Public Sector
Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) to carry out works such as installing heat pumps, solar PV
systems, LED lighting and insulation. As well as improving the comfort of these buildings, these
measures will reduce carbon emissions and lower bills for the council and buildings occupiers.
2.19 Alongside this, the council is investing some of its own capital to increase the size of the solar PV
systems on some of the schools to achieve greater carbon and financial savings. These works will
be completed by the end of the financial year. In total, this year the council will be retrofitting 23
schools and 11 community buildings. By reducing the buildings’ reliance on gas, reducing energy
demand and increasing onsite renewables, we estimate that we will achieve over 1,000 tonnes of
carbon savings per year.

Page 13
2.20 In the 23 schools that Lambeth is currently working with, the decarbonisation measures will reduce
their total carbon emissions by an estimated 42% per annum. The measures will reduce electricity
use by 10% and gas use by 57%, and the solar panels will now generate an estimated 13%
of each school’s electricity. This reduction in use of gas and electricity will save a total of £313,700
of all school’s fuel bills, working out to an average of £13,600 annual savings for each school.
2.21 While the PSDS has allowed the council to move rapidly to start retrofit works, there is a need to
build a longer-term plan for heat decarbonisation across the borough and to engage all asset
owners in this. To that end, the council has been working with partners, including the Greater
London Authority (GLA) and the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS),
energy network operators, and major heat consumers like hospitals, on a heat decarbonisation
study for the borough. The study will create an address-level profile of domestic and commercial
buildings in Lambeth, modelling emission reduction pathways and cost implications at both the
individual building and energy system level. This research will form the technical basis for
subsequent local area energy planning, providing recommendations on appropriate low carbon
technologies and infrastructure investments in Lambeth. This report will also provide the council
with the data and analysis it needs to plan the decarbonisation of its own stock.
Transport and Air Quality
2.22 Although transport related emissions account for a relatively small proportion of the council’s
carbon emissions, they are a significant proportion of the borough’s emissions. The measures we
take to reduce borough wide emissions will also help to reduce council emissions. For example,
under this workstream the council has made rapid improvements to the infrastructure across the
borough that enables people to make zero carbon journeys. Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and
Healthy Routes are designed to make walking and cycling easier, safer and more attractive.
Almost 12% of the borough has been covered by our trial low traffic neighbourhoods brought in at
the beginning of the coronavirus pandemic, and several kilometres of Healthy Routes have either
been improved to bring them up to the required standard or newly built. This helps residents to
make more sustainable transport choices, but also helps staff and council services and suppliers to
do the same. The council continues to move our own fleet vehicles and vehicles used in key
contracts to low / zero emitting alternatives, this will be developed further in the forthcoming fleet
strategy.
2.23 Climate change is linked to air pollution, both as a driver of poor air quality (through e.g. increased
ozone pollution associated with heat waves) and as an amplifier of negative health impacts (e.g.
extreme heat exacerbating respiratory conditions caused by air pollution). Therefore, as well as
being important in its own right, our air quality monitoring and mitigation work also forms part of our
adaptation efforts. Over the last year the council has been reviewing its approach to air quality
monitoring and following that review, has started a second trial of light weight air quality monitors to
improve the range of air quality data collected and access to that data. We have also
commissioned improvements to our air quality monitoring stations, enabling monitoring of PM 2.5
on Brixton Hill and the ability to validate data on PM 2.5 and other particulate matter collected by
the lightweight monitors.
2.24 Mitigation projects this year have included enforcement on vehicle idling, continued support for
zero emissions vehicles for business deliveries, expansion of school streets from 2 to 19, and the
launch of a contract to install green screens at schools across the borough.
2.25 Vehicle idling has long been a concern in the borough, and the council has worked closely with
Idling Action London to raise awareness among pedestrians and motorists about the impacts of
idling. In 2020 the council adopted a new policy to issue £20 fines to drivers who refused to turn off
their cars when stationary. Between February 2018 and September 2019 wardens in Lambeth

Page 14
have advised 2,044 drivers to switch off their engine while stationary, of which 2,017
drivers complied with their advice and 27 people did not. In 2021 the council installed more
signs to further improve awareness. Residents can contact the council to let us know about
idling hot spots and further signage will be installed and enforcement targeted to these
areas.
2.26 Green screens refer to the use of plants to create barriers to reduce exposure to air pollution.
Improving air quality in and around schools is a priority across London, and the GLA and boroughs
have been taking steps to both collect data and develop interventions to reduce children’s
exposure to air pollution. This includes initiatives such as school streets, promotion of active travel
through scooter, walking and cycle training, improving cycling infrastructure, and green screens.
2.27 In 2018 the Environmental Research Group and Kings College London carried out an evaluation of
the impact of green screens at a school in Ealing. They found that the introduction of the green
screen ‘led to a decrease in the mean daily pollution concentrations on the playground side of the
screen by 22%; this was higher than the measurement uncertainty and thus significant. Comparing
school hours independently a mean reduction in concentrations of up to 23% was found for NO2’2.
2.28 Following this insight, the council is prioritising installing green screens at those schools on main
roads where pollution levels are higher. By early 2022 19 schools will have new green screens.
2.29 The council has also been working with the Mayor’s Resilience Fund, which has invested £80,000
in technical expertise to improve data and analysis on Lambeth residents’ exposure to poor air
quality, and understanding of the impact of different interventions. This work is taking place at the
moment with the results available later in the year. Both the monitoring and modelling work will
help inform the development of the new air quality action plan, which is due to be published next
year.
Adaptation
2.30 The adaptation workstream focuses on improving the borough’s resilience to climate change. Our
climate is already changing, and the impacts that are already being felt by our residents, economy
and infrastructure will only increase. The adaptation workstream is focused on reducing key
climate risks such as flooding and increasing temperatures. Over the last year the council has
been working with Thames Water and a range of internal teams to develop a Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SuDS) programme to more effectively manage surface water flooding, and at the same
time achieve a range of other co-benefits including improving biodiversity, shade and access to
green space. The first of these schemes will be built later in the year, with further development to
include projects in schools, housing estates and roads.
2.31 The council’s ability to prepare for climate change, and help the borough prepare, will involve a
wide range of teams and activities. It might include measures such as increasing shading, public
health advice on managing heatwaves, adjusting the materials we use for the construction of key
infrastructure, and retrofitting homes to cope with hot as well as cold weather. To help bring more
focus to this work, and also to help others in the borough play their part, the council is developing
an adaptation framework that will be published next year. In addition, adaptation will form a core
part of the climate action plan to ensure that the response to tackle climate change also deals with
how we cope with the changing weather.

2

A. Tremper and D.Green, The impact of a green screen on concentrations of nitrogen dioxide at Bowes primary
school Enfield (2018)

Page 15
Enabling workstreams – communications and engagement; data and decision-making
2.32 While the above workstreams contain most of our key projects, building a climate capable
organisation will need us to invest in our staff, residents and members’ skills, knowledge,
engagement and ability to take decisions in light of their potential climate impacts.
2.33 The citizens’ assembly has been a focus in this area, but alongside that the council has been
growing our staff engagement programme – supporting different groups of staff to understand the
opportunities to respond to the climate emergency within their work. The council’s ability to
implement climate change measures will depend on the support of residents and businesses, and
we will also have to enable residents to play their part. The council is therefore increasing its
communications activity on the climate emergency using its own communications channels and
engaging with existing networks.
2.34 The council has been working to better understand the impact of its decisions by developing the
Societal Impact Framework – a tool to assess the impact of decisions holistically, including their
environmental impact. This tool is being tested within the council currently, with further roll out to
follow.
2.35 Finally, the annual emissions report will be published in October. This builds on last year’s report,
expanding the range of data collected and published and developing the borough-wide analysis.
Road Danger Reduction
2.36 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested information on road danger in the borough.
Statistics on the number of people killed or seriously injured (KSI) are included in the council’s
quarterly budget and performance monitoring reports to Cabinet.
2.37 Lambeth is committed to working with the Mayor of London to deliver ‘Vision Zero’ for deaths and
serious injuries on our roads with a target date of 2041 for this. Between 2015 and 2019 a total of
6311 collisions were recorded in Lambeth with around 13% (799) of these being KSI collisions.
Figure 1 below shows that overall collisions have declined since 2017, whereas KSIs have
remained relatively static. The majority of these, and of all collisions in Lambeth, occurred on the
Transport for London road network (red routes) which carries the largest volumes of traffic.

Figure 1: Yearly trends in Lambeth by collision severity and road authority

Page 16
2.38 Lambeth is performing slightly worse than the average for inner London and for London as a
whole. It should be noted that the steep increase between 2015 and 2017 shown in Figure 2 below
is attributable to a change in reporting methodology. More recent data shows a dip in the level of
KSIs during ‘lockdown’ periods of the Covid-19 pandemic, but with those levels increasing again as
restrictions have been eased and traffic volumes have risen.

Figure 2: Change in KSI levels over time (2015=100%)

2.39 Pedestrians, cyclists and motorcyclists/moped riders are collectively termed ‘vulnerable road users’
(VRUs). Between 2015 and 2019 VRU casualties accounted for 87% of KSIs in Lambeth. When
measured relative to exposure (time/distance travelled), motorcyclists followed by cyclists are
shown to be the highest risk groups. Pedestrians are most affected in absolute terms.

Figure 3: Proportion of collisions involving VRUs

2.40 Lambeth has been a pioneer in terms of changing approaches to tackling the issue of road
casualties. Rather than focusing simply on avoiding exposure to risk, for example by restricting
opportunities for pedestrians to cross the road, a Road Danger Reduction approach emphasises
the need to tackle threats at source, for example by reducing motor vehicle speeds and volumes.
2.41 Although grant funding for targeted infrastructure measures, such as junction improvements, was
suspended as a result of Covid-19, the Covid-19 Transport Programme focused on reducing road

Page 17
danger by providing safe space for walking and cycling and by reducing through traffic volumes in
residential areas. Early analysis has shown for example that the introduction of low traffic
neighbourhoods has had a significant positive impact in terms of reducing road danger in local
areas.
2.42 We are currently preparing the council’s Road Danger Reduction Strategy. This will include a
review of all the possible actions required to help achieve ‘Vision Zero’. As part of this process, we
are reviewing locations where collision clusters have been recorded. The strategy will also identify
where high-risk behaviours or street layouts are likely to lead to collisions even if not evidenced by
the collision data. The Strategy will also consider the need for schemes in response to feedback
received from the community in relation to road danger. This will lead to a prioritised programme of
interventions that we will deliver over future years. The Strategy will also include non-infrastructure
measures that influence specific high-risk behaviours. Measures such as education, publicity and
training have an important role to play in complementing physical improvements to our streets.
Given the number of collisions taking place on the TfL road network - lobbying for schemes to
improve safety and collaborating on joint schemes will play a part in reaching Vision Zero.
2.43 In order to deliver Vision Zero we will have to be bold and consider measures that will lead to a
significant re-balancing of priorities on our road network and changes to established norms and
travel behaviours.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report as it is
largely for information purposes. The cost of the actions detailed in this report have been met from
existing revenue budgets, grant funding received by the Council or the capital budget agreed by
Cabinet in July 2020, which included significant investment in Climate Change infrastructure.

3.2

Where the cost of planned future activity exceeds the funding available, separate decision making
will be required, although it is likely given the scale of the costs involved that the Council will be
dependent on external grant funding to pursue some options

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no specific legal comments arising from this report.

4.2

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Citizen engagement is an important part of the council’s climate change programme. For this
reason, the council has carried out a range of consultation and engagement activities to help
increase understanding and gain input into our climate response.

5.2

From July to December 2020 the council ran an online engagement exercise to gather input into
the design and focus of the citizens’ assembly. The citizens’ assembly was launched the following
May, with 50 residents selected to develop recommendations on the borough’s climate response.
Alongside the assembly, the council, partners and community groups worked together to
encourage residents to engage in the assembly and its work.

5.3

Strategic partners have also been engaged in this work. Organisations such as GSTT, LSBU, KCL
the BIDs and faith groups have come together as part of the Steering Group for the assembly and
will continue to work together to develop and deliver the borough’s climate action plan.

Page 18
6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

The risks of the Net Zero Carbon 2030 programme are recorded in the programme analysis and
reported to management board on a 6 weekly cycle. The risks of climate change to the borough
and council are recorded in the corporate risk register.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

The 2020 Annual Public Health Report identified a series of equalities impacts associated with
climate change. It showed that those with the fewest resources to adapt were most likely to be
exposed to climate change impacts such as increasing temperatures, increased flood risk and
poorer air quality. The groups identified at highest risk included very old and very young people;
those with pre-existing health conditions; and poorer residents.

7.2

In practical terms, these insights have informed the council’s Net Zero Carbon programme. The
programme has been shaped to prioritise projects, investment and interventions that are most
likely to reduce climate impacts for at risk communities. This means, for example, concentrating
our efforts on developing strategies and projects to retrofit the homes of lower income residents,
and considering where green infrastructure might be located to help address inequalities in access
to green space.

7.3

To understand the equalities impacts of climate change and mitigation measures we may take in
Lambeth, the council and partners commissioned the citizens’ assembly. The assembly members
were able to bring their lived experience and evidence presented to them from other community
groups to think about how we can ensure equalities considerations are at the heart of our
emerging climate change response. The recommendations and principles developed by the
citizens’ assembly have been received by the council, and a response will be published later in the
year as part of the borough wide Climate Action Plan.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Health
None

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 N/A

Page 19
Audit Trail
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Claire Holland
Sara Waller and Eleanor
Purser, Co-Strategic
Directors
Matthew Gaynor, Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Jonathan Pook, Head of
Parking
Rob Bristow, Director of
Planning, Sustainability and
Transport
Andrew Marshall, AD
Housing Capital and Asset
Management

Date Sent

Date
Received

Leader of the Council

18.08.2021

29.09.2021

Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity

18.08.2021

06.09.2021

Finance and Property

30.09.2021

01.10.2021

Legal and Governance

30.09.2021

01.10.2021

Legal and Governance

31.08.21

02.09.21

Residents Services

13.08.21

23.08.21

18.08.2021

24.08.2021

Lambeth Directorate

Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity
Residents’ Services

Comments in
paragraph:

13.08.21

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

14.08.2021
01.10.2021
01.10.2021
No
No
N/A
Not applicable
Lambeth’s Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan
Lambeth’s Citizens’ Assembly Recommendations
Appendix 1: Climate Change Action Log

This page is intentionally left blank

16 July 2020: Budget / Climate Change – Updated September 2021
Item

Recommendation / Action

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the importance of learning from best practice be
highlighted, in particular the emissions baseline document
produced by Bristol City Council and the organisation and
transparency of the work being done by Devon Council to
implement its climate emergency plan

Accepted

To urge officers to ensure that the public are fully
engaged and consulted on the Citizens’ Assembly and
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods – including via a variety of
communications methods, not just online – and that such
communications be appropriately coordinated in order that
residents’ views on one can be used to inform the other.
This communications plan should be reported back to the
committee
Accepted

Response
The climate change programme
has, and continues, to draw on
learning and practice from other
councils, cities, and countries. As
the sector looks to accelerate
work to reach Net 0 there is a
strong emphasis on collaboration
and learning together.
The emissions report collects and
presents data consistently with
the LGA framework. It also
develops the borough-wide
analysis as recommended by
OSC.
The Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
programme has used a range of
communication and engagement
methods. Face to face
engagement has been carried out
when public health advice has
permitted. This will continue
throughout the consultations.
Printed materials are used as well
as online meetings and website
information.
The citizens’ assembly did
consider what action would need
to be taken to reduce transport
related emissions. The
recommendations arising from
this will be considered by the
council and partners.

Deadline

Owner

Complete

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating
A

Page 21

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

Accepted/
Rejected

A

Complete

Hannah
Jameson /
Paul Bates

Item

Recommendation / Action

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That further information be provided to the committee
regarding how the council is working jointly with the
Western Riverside Waste Authority on the use of its work
within the climate change agenda but particularly its work
on the use of incineration methods as a source of waste
disposal

Accepted/
Rejected

The London Borough of
Lambeth’s residual waste (i.e. that
which cannot be reused or
recycled) is managed by the
Western Riverside Waste
Authority and, under its contract
with Cory Riverside Energy
(CRE), the waste is transferred by
river to CRE’s Energy from Waste
(EfW) Facility in the London
Borough of Bexley (LBB).
A report by Ramboll, for the LBB,
on the feasibility of a new District
Energy network to deliver heat
from the EfW Facility to the
Thamesmead & Belvedere area
of Bexley was published in May
2019. The key findings from this
report were that:
 The EfW Facility could
supply all heat required
for the scheme.
 The provision of
supplementary heat
generation and storage
would be required to meet
to the anticipated 10%
annual downtime of the
EfW Facility
 An IRR in the region of
7.5% – 11.1% might be
achieved.
 Utilising the heat
generated from the EfW
Facility could deliver an
overall CO2 saving of

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

G

Hannah
Jameson

Page 22

Accepted

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

3,970 tonnes/annum
against a counterfactual
case of a new Air-Source
Heat Pump plant,
adhering to projected new
London Plan
requirements, or 14,900
tonnes/annum against a
case of gas-fired CHP led
communal heating
schemes.

That the importance of refining the emissions baseline
document as current assumptions evolve be highlighted,
and that the process for doing this be reported back to the
committee

Accepted

Page 23

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

CRE announced in May 2020 that
it has partnered with Vattenfall
with the aim of developing the
heat network (which would be one
of the largest in the UK).
The existing EfW Facility is
capable of supplying affordable,
low carbon heat to 10,500 homes
and if CRE’s development plans
for a new Riverside Energy Park
come to fruition that will have the
potential to supply a further
10,500 homes.
Progress against the baseline will
be reviewed annually. Alongside
this, any changes to the baseline
or the assumptions underpinning
it will be published. Members
should be aware that this is a
rapidly evolving field, and that
changes to the way we measure
emissions, and the sources of
emissions we focus on are likely
to change over the next 10 years.

Complete
Hannah
Jameson

G

Item

Recommendation / Action
That further information regarding the evaluation of Low
Traffic Neighbourhoods and the criteria and process for
making these permanent (as appropriate) be provided to
the committee

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That an update on future funding streams for emergency
transport works be provided to the committee as and
when further information becomes available

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the elimination of Glyphosate be accelerated and
consideration be given to an opt-in (rather than opt-out)
approach

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the committee endorses the innovative work being
done by the London Borough of Islington on heat transfer
and would like to see Lambeth explore similar approaches

Response

Accepted

The Emergency Transport
Programme monitoring strategy is
now published.

Accepted

Total grant funding for 20/21 for
sustainable transport is c £5m. Of
this c. £3m is from emergency
Covid grant.

The use of glyphosate on
Lambeth’s streets, parks and
open space, and housing estates
has now ceased.
Accepted

The council has begun to develop
its energy strategy and will
identify relevant low carbon
energy opportunities as part of
this work. We expect the first
phase of work, to develop the
evidence base, to be completed in
summer 2021 with options for
decarbonising heat to follow
shortly after.

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Completed

Hannah
Jameson

G

Completed

Hannah
Jameson

G

Complete

Hannah
Jameson

A

A
Late 2021

Hannah
Jameson

Page 24

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

Accepted/
Rejected

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 12 OCTOBER 2021
Report title: Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Commission: Draft Report
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air (job-share):
Councillor Danny Adilypour and Councillor Mahamed Hashi
Report Authorised by: Eleanor Purser and Sara Waller: Strategic Directors for Sustainable
Growth and Opportunity
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 020 7926 8703,
mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report presents the draft report of the Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTN) Scrutiny Commission and
seeks formal sign-off from the Committee prior to its presentation to Cabinet, currently scheduled for
22 November 2021.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.

RECOMMENDATION
1.

To approve the Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Commission report, attached at Appendix 1,
for presentation to Cabinet, subject to any comments from Members.

Page 26
1.
1.1

CONTEXT
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Commission
The Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Commission was established in late 2020 following a
submission of a proposal by Councillor Mary Atkins, who chaired the commission. This was
approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 9 December 2020,
whereupon five more Members – Councillors Paul Gadsby, Nicole Griffiths, Marianna Masters,
Irfan Mohammed and Jane Pickard – were appointed.

1.2

The commission’s key aims were to examine the implementation and evaluation of the emergency
LTNs introduced in Spring 2020 and identify lessons that could be used in future implementation of
policies related to the climate emergency.

1.3

The commission held eight meetings over a six-month period, including discussions on the scope,
a meeting with the then Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and
Clean Air) and officers, and meetings with witnesses. Full details on the meetings held can be
found in Appendix 1.

1.4

Throughout the process Members aimed to provide scrutiny and challenge while also influencing
the direction of policy development by working collaboratively with officers. The commission wishes
to put on record its gratitude to the officers involved, as well as the Cabinet Member, whose time,
expertise and constructive engagement were crucial to the outputs described in the commission
report.

1.5

In response to the evidence gathered, the commission has formulated a set of recommendations,
detailed in Appendix 1.

1.6

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods as a response to Covid-19
The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in local and central government re-engineering the public realm,
in order to accommodate the need for physical distancing, and the growth in people walking and
cycling as public transport usage decreased.

1.7

In April 2020, the Council approved its Emergency Transport Strategy, and in May 2020 the
Department for Transport issues statutory guidance with a direct bearing on local authority
obligations in respect of the Network Management Duty (Traffic Management Act 2004). The
guidance was clear and specific in its aims, and directed local authorities to introduce traffic
reduction measures such as low traffic neighbourhoods in response to the pandemic within weeks.
The imperative to act quickly necessarily limited the opportunity for extensive pre-engagement on
emergency schemes. In response to this response to this Government direction, Transport for
London then published the London Streetscape Plan, which provided further guidance to London
boroughs on the implementation of an accelerated programme of emergency interventions to
support safe, active travel, including the implementation of LTNs.

1.8

Guidance to local authorities from central and regional Government was complemented by a
dedicated funding stream to support the directed activity. The Government’s Emergency Active
Travel Fund (EATF), introduced in May 2020, provided support for local authorities to implement
active travel schemes to respond to the challenges of the pandemic by facilitating a rapid increase
in walking and cycling while discouraging car use.

1.9

As a result of this, plans were brought forward to introduce selected Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
using temporary traffic orders as mandated by the Secretary of State. Temporary traffic orders do
not require consultation and are generally used where an urgent change to the highway is
necessary. Under the circumstances, officers were only able to commence publicity for the scheme

Page 27
two weeks in advance of implementation, however engagement activity has been conducted since
then. Between autumn and late winter, officers then moved to experimental traffic orders,
formalising the experimental process and putting in place a statutory process for objection, while
informal engagement has continued. This preceded a non-statutory consultation beginning in
autumn 2021 to give people a chance to contribute to the decision on whether the schemes are
made permanent.
1.10 Despite this direction from Government and the Council’s published strategy, the introduction of
LTNs, and the reasons for them, caused some confusion, and LTNs have been perceived as
polarising opinion. However, recent government research suggests that the majority of people do
not have strong opinions either way, with only a vocal minority either strongly for or against. There
is no doubt however that LTNs are controversial in some areas and officers and members have
received a significant amount of correspondence since the schemes were introduced. It should be
noted that those people active on social media and those corresponding with the council, are only
likely to represent strong views held by vocal minorities on either side of the debate, with general
opinion likely to be more nuanced.
1.11 One of the key aims of the Commission was to use the example of LTNs to explore how changes
in response to the climate crisis could be made in the future, particularly with regard to
consultation, implementation and monitoring.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

It is proposed that the Committee approves the commission’s report for presentation to Cabinet,
currently scheduled for 22 November 2021, subject to any comments from Members.

2.2

Officers are in the process of preparing an action plan to accompany the commission report,
responding to the recommendations therein. Cabinet will be asked to approve the action plan at
the same meeting.

2.3

Following agreement of the action plan at Cabinet, two further updates will be programmed into the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme to enable to Committee to assess progress
against the recommendations.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

The cost of the commission was funded within existing Scrutiny budgets.

3.2

The final report of the commission, when reported to Cabinet, will have an action plan attached
providing the departmental response to the recommendations made. Where there are financial
implications to the recommendations such as the installation of additional signage, the cost of the
recommendations will need to be made clear before Cabinet can be asked to agree them.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council in the exercise of its functions to have due
regard to the need to:
(a)

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other form of conduct prohibited under
the act; and,

Page 28
(b)

4.2

Having regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant
protected characteristics and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

4.3

to advance equality of opportunity and to foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic (age, disability, gender re-assignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion and belief, sex, and sexual orientation) and persons who do not share
it.

remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
take steps to meet the needs of the persons who share that characteristic that are different
from the needs of persons who do not share it; and,
encourage persons of the relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any
other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

Compliance with the above public sector equality duties may involve treating some persons more
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would otherwise be
prohibited by or under the Act.

4.4. The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of policy options, and in making a
final decision. A public body cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has been
taken. An Equality Impact Assessment has been made reviewed as discussed in paragraph 7 below.
4.5

In HHRC Ltd v Hackney LBC [2021] EWHC 2440 (Admin) Dove J held in ruling on a challenge to
Hackney LBC LTNs based in part on that Council’s satisfaction of their Equality Duty:
“The ETP's EqIA itself acknowledges the need for further detailed evaluation of each specific
proposal, which itself provides a safeguard in relation to evaluation of impacts upon those with
protected characteristics by the making of detailed adjustments in the context of a detailed specific
design, or indeed perhaps not progressing a proposed scheme, bearing in mind the ongoing
evaluation of the impact of any particular scheme upon those protected characteristics. I share the
view of Kerr J set out in his judgment in the case of Sheakh that it is possible in some
circumstances for a form of iterative, or progressive, assessment of equalities impacts to properly
discharge the PSED, and whether that is the case is, of course, sensitive to the facts of individual
cases”

4.6

There are no other immediate legal implications arising from this report. Separate legal clearance
will be sought in relation to the commission’s final report to Cabinet.

4.7

The final report of the commission is scheduled to be reported to Cabinet on 22 November 2021.
The proposed key decision will be entered onto the forward plan and the necessary 28 clear days’
notice will be given before bring reported to Cabinet. The final report will be published for five clear
days before the decision is considered by Cabinet. Should it be approved and following the
publication of the Cabinet minutes, a further period of five clear days, the call-in period, must then
elapse before the decision becomes effective. If the decision is called-in during this period, it
cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

Page 29
5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

As stated in paragraph 1.3 and Appendix 1, a number of meetings were held with officers,
Councillors and witnesses, and these contributed to the findings and recommendations of the
Commission.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

There are no risks specific to this report. The final commission report to Cabinet will include risk
management relating to the action plan.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

A formal Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) was not completed for this report, but equalities
impacts on the introduction of LTNs were considered throughout the Commission, and are referred
to in Appendix 1.

7.2

EIAs were completed for the emergency LTN schemes and were considered by the Council’s
corporate EIA Panel, in accordance with usual practice. No significant negative impacts were
identified for protected groups.

7.3

It is expected that an EIA will be produced to accompany the Cabinet report.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Not applicable.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
If enacted, the Commission’s recommendations would have an impact on the environment,
particularly in areas such as response to the climate emergency, transport and air pollution.

9.2

Health
The Commission’s recommendations on air quality monitoring, if enacted, could positively affect
health, particularly respiratory conditions.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
Not applicable.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable.

9.6

Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
Not applicable.

9.7

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Not applicable.
Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030

Page 30
9.8

Not applicable.

9.9

Single Use Plastics
Not applicable.

Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 Not applicable.
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 Not applicable.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 The expected timetable is set out below:

Activity

Proposed Date

Draft Commission report presented to OSC

12.10.21

Date published on Forward Plan

TBC

Commission report and recommendations to be presented to Cabinet for
consideration and response

22.11.21

First update report to OSC on progress against recommendations

Late 2022

Second update report to OSC on progress against recommendations

Late 2023

Page 31
AUDIT TRAIL

Name and Position/Title

Lambeth Directorate

Councillor Mary Atkins

Commission Chair
Chair, Overview and
Councillor Liz Atkins
Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member for
Councillors Mahamed Hashi Sustainable Transport,
and Danial Adilypour
Environment and Clean
Air (job-share)
Eleanor Purser/Sara Waller, Sustainable Growth and
Strategic Director
Opportunity
Hannah Jameson, Assistant Sustainable Growth and
Director
Opportunity
Matthew Gaynor, Finance
Finance and Property
Greg Carson, Legal
Legal and Governance
Services
Christian Scade,
Legal and Governance
Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
paragraph:

30.09.21

30.09.21

30.09.21

30.09.21

30.09.21

For Info

29.09.21

29.09.21

29.09.21

29.09.21

Appendix 1

24.09.21

29.09.21

3.2

24.09.21

27.09.21

4.1 - 4.6

24.09.21

30.09.21

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Appendices

XX.XX.20
29.09.21
No
No
N/A – will be published on the forward plan before
Cabinet
4. Not applicable.
See Commission report (Appendix 1) for full list of
background documents
Traffic Management Act 2004: network
management to support recovery from COVID-19
Gear Change: one year on
Appendix 1 – Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
Commission Draft Report

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 33

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
Scrutiny Commission
Draft Report

September 2021

Commission Members:
Councillor Mary Atkins (Chair)
Councillor Paul Gadsby
Councillor Nicole Griffiths
Councillor Marianna Masters
Councillor Irfan Mohammed
Councillor Jane Pickard

Contact for enquiries:
Gary O’Key, Senior Democratic Services Officer
020 7926 2183
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 34

Contents
Foreword by the Chair of the Commission

p2

List of Recommendations

p4

Introduction

p7

Background

p7

Section 1: Design and Implementation

p12

Section 2: Consultation, Communication & Democracy

p16

Section 3: Monitoring and Evaluation

p20

Annex A: Acknowledgements

p24

Annex B: Commission Scope

p25

Annex C: Background Documents

p32

1

Page 35

Foreword by the Chair of the Commission
The Covid19 pandemic has changed many of the ways we do things. When the first
lockdown eased the government offered Councils financial support to reduce the risk of
infection on public transport and to avoid the possibility of gridlock on roads. One of the
policies available to achieve the safer movement of people was Low Traffic Neigbourhoods
(LTNs). However, the time frame given to implement this measure led to many mainly
Conservative Councils wasting vast amounts of money implementing schemes and then
removing them, often after the public or a section of the public protested. The government
then gave a series of mixed messages that further put pressure on local councils. The
lessons to learn from this approach are clearly outlined in Local Government Association
Stakeholder engagement in an emergency: lessons from low traffic neighbourhoods (May
2021)
The rapid input of LTNs led to an often toxic debate on social media: Twitter, WhatsApp,
YouTube. I like many of my fellow Councillors was concerned about the implications for
democracy if such bitter debates either stopped people being involved in politics or were
allowed to be “hijacked” by political groups for their agendas.
Campaigners often used excluded and/or interest groups to support their cause; the
commission discussed equality issues in Para 3.8,4.3.4.8 4.10. with specific
recommendations in Recs 10. We also read widely on the effect of LTNs on workers, people
in social housing, disabled people and BAME groups; these are listed in the documents
section.
The use of perceptions versus evidence to prove whether LTNs were effective or not was a
theme that reoccurred frequently in discussion. Professor Aldred outlined research that fire
crews perceived their journeys were taking longer in Low Traffic Neighborhoods while the
evidence indicated there was no change in journey times. The Impact of Introducing a Low
Traffic Neighbourhood on Fire Service Emergency Response Times in Waltham Forest,
London (Dec 2020).
How to change our behaviour around car use and the many alternatives to car use, was an
issue where evidence of what we intend to do when asked in a research situation and what
we do when making personal choices, diverged. One of the top recommendations in the
Government Climate change assembly (UK Climate Assembly The Path to Net Zero (2020))
was that road traffic should be reduced. This was reenforced in the consultation for
Lambeth’s Transport Strategy. Among the conclusions of that consultation was that “four out
of five people agreed with the principle that we should encourage people to walk, cycle and
use public transport rather than travel by car”. However, when actually asked to change our
mode of transport many have, but many have protested. Bringing any kind of radical change
needs clear and frequent communication, transparent processes for monitoring and the
availability of mechanisms to support transition.
My thanks to my fellow Labour Councillors Paul Gadsby, Marianna Masters, Irfan
Mohammed and Jane Pickard as well as Green Party Councillor Nicole Griffiths for all their
hard work.

2

Page 36

The Commission members discussed understanding of democracy and policy development,
the role of perceptions against evidence, conflict management and behaviour change. All of
my fellow councillors undertook their own research on the impacts of LTNs on business,
disabled people, the role of WhatsApp groups in their localities, and presented examples of
behaviour change.

In addition, my thanks to Gary O’Key from Democratic Services who so ably managed data,
set deadlines and drafted the report.

Mary Atkins
Councillor, Tulse Hill ward and Commission Chair

3

Page 37

List of Recommendations
DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION
Recommendation 1
A clear and convincing case should be made for future climate emergency interventions
linked to related Council strategies (such as on health and business/economic
development), the priorities of external bodies (e.g. Transport for London) where relevant,
and published data/evidence from well-informed and trusted sources. This should include a
broad, positive vision of what the interventions are attempting to achieve, referencing
equality, health and wellbeing, and quality of life for all.
Recommendation 2
Co-design and co-production principles should be embedded in any scheme that is likely to
impact a significant portion of the borough’s population.
Recommendation 3
Clear criteria for implementation of hyper-local interventions should be linked to broader
strategic objectives (in the case of LTNs, this includes how air quality is to be improved, the
implementation of supporting measures such as electric vehicle charging points and bike
storage, and movement plans for people and business, including goals for public transport).
Recommendation 4
It is vital that future schemes such as LTNs be implemented alongside other measures to
mitigate potential problems, based on the specifics of the locality in question and with
resident input (this could include, for example, more extensive use of benches in hilly areas,
bicycle storage and car sharing options, or responding to personal safety concerns).
Recommendation 5
Travel interventions to support the climate emergency should have a greater focus on
encouraging accessible and inclusive active travel – particularly walking – and be designed
with surrounding areas (more broadly than just adjacent roads) in mind.
Recommendation 6
Clear and comprehensive signage at street level is required to eliminate any ambiguity as to
what is and isn’t permitted in relation to any future measures to tackle the climate
emergency.
Recommendation 7
A more open approach to possible exemptions from schemes responding to the climate
emergency is needed for those who may suffer serious detriment to their lives or livelihoods.
CONSULTATION, COMMUNICATION & DEMOCRACY
Recommendation 8
A major communications strategy is required regarding air pollution. This should focus on the
causes of pollution; health implications; measurement/monitoring in the borough; and actions
that can be taken by individuals and organisations to reduce and mitigate the impacts. Within
this should be a recognition that people’s experiences are going to be different according to
their personal circumstances.
Recommendation 9
Consultation on future measures related to the climate emergency should be carried out via
a range of methods including letter drops, local meetings/events and door to door
4

Page 38

engagement where necessary – as well as online – in order to gather the widest possible
range of views, thereby enabling potential issues to be considered and, where possible,
mitigated prior to implementation. With regards to public meetings, skilled independent
facilitators should be employed to mediate between different groups where strong conflicting
opinions exist.
Recommendation 10
The impact of future climate emergency measures on groups with protected characteristics
under the Equality Act requires thorough consideration prior to implementation. Where a
certain group is likely to be particularly affected, a representative of a relevant outside
organisation should be co-opted onto the Equality Impact Assessment Panel. This is
especially important when it comes to disabled people.
Recommendation 11
Climate change implications should be considered in all Council strategy and policy
documents.
Recommendation 12
A greater focus on cross-departmental working is required to ensure appropriate expertise is
brought in from all relevant areas. There should also be better use of existing
communications channels (e.g. between Adult Social Care and carers’ groups; Enterprise,
Jobs & Skills and business forums; Community Safety and local policing teams; and Housing
and residents’ groups) when communicating on climate emergency issues.
Recommendation 13
The use of stakeholder groups, community leaders and elected representatives to
communicate and engage with residents and businesses about the importance and urgency
of measures to combat the climate emergency should be prioritised. This should encompass
a wide demographic and include frequent messaging on timelines, refinement, monitoring
and evaluation. Communications should be honest (acknowledging difficulties/drawbacks)
and rebut myths by focusing on evidence vs perception. Messaging should be inclusive,
focusing on wider community benefits and avoiding language which appears to penalise
certain groups.
MONITORING AND EVALUATION
Recommendation 14
Monitoring criteria should be evidence-based and include wider benefits (such as, in the
case of LTNs, impact on road traffic collisions and health).
Recommendation 15
Monitoring strategies should be clear about the time period over which certain
benefits/outcomes are expected to be realised.
Recommendation 16
Monitoring of travel interventions should include the effects on borough wide traffic, not just
on boundary roads but more broadly.
Recommendation 17
Monitoring needs to take into account interruptions to traffic movements in the wider area,
such as significant road repairs or long-term utility works, which may have an impact on
traffic flows.

5

Page 39

Recommendation 18
There is an urgent need to improve the scope and accuracy of air quality monitoring across
Lambeth. Consideration should be given to commissioning a trusted outside organisation to
help achieve this.
Recommendation 19
The establishment of a specific body to oversee the Council’s actions to tackle the climate
emergency, including a broad range of representatives from within and outside the authority,
should be considered.
Recommendation 20
The Council should consider partnering with relevant local institutions (e.g. universities) to
conduct independent research into longer term monitoring of climate emergency measures
and publicise results.

6

Page 40

Introduction
1.1

The Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (hereafter ‘LTN’) Scrutiny Commission was
established in late 2020 following the submission of a proposal by Councillor Mary
Atkins, who chaired the commission. This was approved by the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee at its meeting on 9 December, whereupon five more Members – Councillors
Paul Gadsby, Nicole Griffiths, Marianna Masters, Irfan Mohammed and Jane Pickard –
were appointed.

1.2

The commission’s key aims were to examine the implementation and evaluation of the
emergency LTNs introduced in Spring 2020 and identify lessons that could be used in
future implementation of policies related to the climate emergency.

1.3

The commission scope, which outlines the core questions Members were seeking to
answer and the resultant terms of reference, is attached at Annex B.

1.4

The commission held eight meetings over a six-month period. This began with a
discussion on the terms of reference to ensure a common understanding of the scope
of the commission and agree an outline work plan, followed by an initial consideration
of key documents from Lambeth and elsewhere. Members next held a question and
answer session with the then Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport,
Environment & Clean Air) and officers to fully understand the circumstances leading to
the emergency LTN rollout and the monitoring mechanisms in place. The commission
went on to consider a variety of research papers, articles and reports on LTNs more
widely; explore common themes in objections to LTN schemes; and hear from witnesses
including a prominent air quality campaigner and two university professors (with
specialisms in active travel, and attitudes and behaviour change in relation to climate
change initiatives). Finally, the commission met to draw together the evidence received
and consider its findings.

1.5

Throughout the process Members aimed to provide scrutiny and challenge while also
influencing the direction of policy development by working collaboratively with officers.
The commission wishes to put on record its gratitude to the officers involved, as well as
the Cabinet Member, whose time, expertise and constructive engagement were crucial
to the outputs described below.

1.6

In response to the evidence gathered, the commission has formulated a set of
recommendations. These are included in the appropriate sections of the main body of
the report below and are also compiled above, for ease of reference.

Background
The Climate Emergency and Transport in Lambeth
2.1

Lambeth Council became one of the first local authorities in the country to declare a
climate emergency in January 2019, recognising the urgent need for action to tackle
carbon emissions via individual and collective action to “make low carbon living easier
and the new norm”. The motion recognised that the consequences of failing to tackle
7

Page 41

the climate emergency would include health problems – particularly for children,
disabled people and older people – and increased inequality.
2.2

In November the same year, Cabinet approved the Lambeth Transport Strategy, at the
heart of which lay a commitment to ensure the transport system in the borough was safe
and accessible to all while enabling people to lead healthier lives. The strategy set out
a vision to urgently tackle climate change by introducing measures to reduce carbon
emissions, including increasing the amount of trips made by ‘active travel’ methods
(such as walking and cycling), alongside the use of public transport, and reduce reliance
on private car use. The strategy was developed following two rounds of public
consultation over an 18-month period, both conducted in parallel with the review of the
Local Plan, which resulted in hundreds of representations. Among the conclusions of
this consultation was that “four out of five people agreed with the principle that we should
encourage people to walk, cycle and use public transport rather than travel by car”.

2.3

Alongside the Transport Strategy sat an Implementation Plan (TSIP), the aim of which
was to provide more detail on the projects and initiatives the Council would prioritise to
meet the aims of the strategy. The Transport Strategy was underpinned by five guiding
principles: Sustainable Growth, Efficient & Connected, Inclusive & Accessible, Active &
Safe, and Carbon Neutral & Clean Air. The TSIP outlined the criteria by which
neighbourhood traffic reduction interventions would be prioritised: where there is
evidence of ‘rat running’, where school pupils are affected, air quality is poor, collisions
high and where a ‘healthy route’ is proposed (a ‘healthy route’ is defined in the TSIP as
a convenient, attractive, safe and accessible route linking people with places they need
to get to, which enable more people to walk and cycle).

2.4

Among the interventions proposed by the TSIP was a programme of Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods (LTNs). These are groups of residential streets, bordered by main
roads, where through traffic is discouraged or removed via ‘modal filters’ – barriers
through which certain vehicles are not permitted to pass. Such changes are designed to
significantly reduce motor traffic levels and make walking and cycling the natural choice
for shorter journeys.

2.5

While engagement with the community on the development of the Transport Strategy
was a starting point, Section 10 of the TSIP explained how the proposed interventions
contained within it were envisaged to include significant further engagement with, and
input from, local communities and stakeholder groups as they proceeded through the
various phases of design and implementation.
Covid-19 and the Emergency Response

2.6

When the novel coronavirus Covid-19 reached the UK at the end of January 2020, few
could have foreseen the impact it would come to have on all aspects of life. Declared a
pandemic by the World Health Organisation in early March, the virus has devastated
countless lives and led to societal changes which would previously have been
unthinkable, including weeks of strict lockdown measures and a continuing policy of
‘social distancing’.

8

Page 42

2.7

The effect of Covid-19 on the Local Authority is hard to overstate. For several weeks the
Council operated under emergency arrangements in order to be able to respond urgently
to the emerging situation and provide critical support to residents and businesses in the
borough, including life-and-death services such as food hubs. This meant some Council
officers were redeployed to frontline services, while at the same time others attempted
to juggle caring and childcare commitments with increasingly diverse and pressurised
workloads. “Normal service” had gone out of the window.

2.8

Against this backdrop, the Council moved incredibly quickly to bring in its Emergency
Transport Strategy in April 2020. This sought to tackle the immediate transport
implications of the public health challenges posed by the virus, including the huge
reduction in public transport capacity and the need to re-engineer the public realm to
enable greater social distancing, by taking certain appropriate measures in the 2019
Transport Strategy and Implementation Plan, and accelerating these significantly. The
Government’s Emergency Active Travel Fund (EATF), introduced in May 2020, provided
support for local authorities to implement active travel schemes to respond to the
challenges of the pandemic by facilitating a rapid increase in walking and cycling while
discouraging car use.

2.9

As a result of central and regional Government guidance, including the statutory
guidance with a direct bearing on local authority obligations in respect of the Network
Management Duty (Traffic Management Act 2004) issued in May 2020, plans were
brought forward to introduce selected Low Traffic Neighbourhoods using temporary
traffic orders as mandated by the Secretary of State. Lambeth was not alone in this
approach, particularly in London; LTNs were introduced in many areas. A distributional
analysis produced by Prof Rachel Aldred, Professor of Transport at Westminster
University and Director of its Active Travel Academy, and Dr Ersilia Verlinghieri, Senior
Research Fellow, in November 2020, focusing on emergency schemes implemented
between March and September 2020, showed that 4% of London residents were
covered by LTNs. This rose to 15% in Lambeth specifically. The research also showed
that, although there was significant variation between boroughs, LTNs were more likely
to be in more deprived areas.

2.10 The events described above gave rise to a certain amount of confusion over why the
LTNs were being introduced. Was it purely because of the pandemic? Was it to respond
to the climate emergency and tackle air pollution? Was it just a convenient way of
realising a longstanding policy ambition? And what of the tangible effects? While some
people positively embraced LTNs as a chance to breathe cleaner air, increase exercise
levels and reconnect with their locality and neighbours, others saw them as presenting
only obstacles: local businesses had concerns regarding deliveries and passing trade,
for example, while those who relied on car travel such as carers and taxi drivers saw
their journeys become longer and more complicated.
2.11 Despite good intentions, LTNs became a polarising issue in many local communities,
and it is this context that gave rise to the proposal of establishing a scrutiny commission,
the idea being to bring together a group of cross-party backbench councillors
representing different areas of the borough and with a diverse range of interests and
specialisms to examine the circumstances surrounding the implementation of the
9

Page 43

emergency LTNs, treating this as a case study to identify lessons for future such
measures related to the climate emergency.
Stakeholder Involvement and the Commission Evidence Base
2.12 As can be seen from the scope agreed at the outset of the commission (attached at
Annex B), Members initially planned to hold a dedicated stakeholder engagement
session as part of their evidence gathering to solicit the views of a wide range of people
with differing views and experiences of LTNs to feed into the commission’s findings, in
a similar fashion to the Events Scrutiny Commission which reported to Cabinet in 2019.
However, once the commission got underway it soon became clear that there were a
number of issues with this approach. First, the number of stakeholder groups was many
and varied, and it would therefore be a significant and resource-intensive piece of work
which would be likely to set the commission’s initial estimated timelines back quite
considerably. The level of polarisation around the arguments also led Members to
conclude that such an exercise may be better undertaken by skilled independent
facilitators. At the same time, the lack of public meetings due to Covid-19 restrictions
meant that the vast majority of the debate was taking place online and in electronic
forums such as WhatsApp groups which Members were already a part of, and this made
it relatively straightforward to tap into debates and identify the main issues of a range of
individuals and groups, which could be reflected back in commission meetings without
the need for a specific consultation event.
2.13 As a result of this, the primary focus of the commission’s evidence gathering was to sift
through the multitude of reports, articles, opinion pieces, research papers and other
information posted online to capture the key issues, being sure to take on board the full
spectrum of viewpoints, while enabling the commission to work to tighter timelines than
usual and report its findings without any unnecessary delay – thereby exerting its
influence in a more timely manner. The comprehensive list of background documents
set out at Annex C goes some way towards demonstrating the sheer volume of evidence
considered, and it should further be noted that each commission member carried out
additional research in their locality and field of expertise. This included gathering the
views of businesses, disabled people and various local resident and special interest
groups.
2.14 In addition to this, and the Q&A session with the portfolio holder and officers described
above, the commission chose to invite three expert witnesses to give (virtual) in-person
evidence at its meetings. These were: Rosamund Kissi-Debrah, a prominent air quality
campaigner based in South London; Prof Rachel Aldred, Professor of Transport at
Westminster University and Director of its Active Travel Academy; and Prof Lorraine
Whitmarsh, an environmental psychologist specialising in perceptions and behaviour in
relation to climate change, energy and transport, who was an expert advisor to the UK
Climate Assembly.
2.15 The commission’s findings are split into three sections which reflect the main themes
identified: Design & Implementation; Consultation, Communication & Democracy; and
Monitoring & Evaluation. The evidence received from the various sources identified is

10

Page 44

reflected at relevant points in the main body of the commission report to support the
conclusions reached.

11

Page 45

Section 1: Design and Implementation
3.1

The first theme highlighted in our report is that of design and implementation. On this,
we make several recommendations in an attempt to ensure future interventions are
clearly defined, based on demonstrable evidence and involve input from relevant
stakeholders at an early stage, thereby anticipating potential problems while also
tailoring solutions to local communities.

3.2

As alluded to in the introductory section above, the basis for the introduction of the
emergency LTNs was the subject of a certain amount of confusion. This is entirely
understandable given the emergency context and the severely truncated timelines to
which the Council was working. However, we consider that, although the evidence base
for the LTNs was rooted in policy – from the 2019 Transport Strategy (and accompanying
Implementation Plan) through to the Emergency Strategy approved in April 2020 – the
case could have been made in a more convincing fashion. We believe there could have
been a stronger link between the LTNs and other Council strategies which could have
better demonstrated the reasons for these interventions, framed around arguments of
health, well-being, equality and social justice, and that this may have helped quell some
of the fears around, and opposition to, the schemes.

3.3

The Rapid Evidence Assessment on Liveable and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
produced in March 2021 by the Bristol Advisory Committee on Climate Change
recognises the importance of such an approach. This report, which aimed to gather and
assess the quality and quantity of evidence on Liveable Neighbourhoods and LTNs,
recommends that “communities be shown compelling evidence on the benefits to health
and safety as a result of [a] better walking and cycling environment” to help clarify
misconceptions and that, above all, it is necessary to “set out the narrative: we need to
make positive changes: we cannot continue as now for the health and well-being of our
communities and beyond”. The Air Quality report produced by Southwark Council’s
Environment Scrutiny Commission also makes similar points. It is vital that, in doing this,
the legitimate fears of various stakeholders are neither dismissed nor belittled, but rather
acknowledged and mitigations explored. It is also acknowledged that behaviour change
is a complex and difficult process. Prof Whitmarsh informed us that support for active
travel measures continued to grow despite the pandemic, and the experience from the
UK Climate Assembly was that closing roads was among the more popular policies to
tackle climate change, yet support often dropped at the hyper-local level once schemes
went in. However, had there been a more clearly articulated positive vision of what LTNs
were attempting to achieve, focusing on the wider community benefits, we believe more
sections of the community may have been supportive from an early stage and this would
have helped avoid some of the polarisation of views we have observed.

3.4

Similarly, we believe the criteria for implementation of schemes must be linked more
strongly to the authority’s objectives. It is noted that the TSIP explicitly sets out the
criteria by which the Council will prioritise neighbourhood traffic reduction interventions:
“where there is evidence of ‘rat running’, where school pupils are affected, air quality is
poor, collisions high and where a ‘healthy route’ is proposed”. We consider that,
legitimate though it is as a local concern, to place ‘rat running’ at the forefront of this list
is unhelpful and that a focus on broader strategic objectives – such as on air quality,
12

Page 46

road safety and movement plans for individuals and businesses – would be more
beneficial. The approach of the 2018 Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission – cited as
part of the Transport Strategy evidence base – articulates such a vision.
3.5

As already stated, we accept that officers were under extreme pressure when
implementing the emergency LTNs and that the prevailing circumstances at the time
were both confusing and challenging. However, in seeking to identify lessons and best
practice for the future, we feel it is necessary to highlight how vital it is to embed codesign
and coproduction principles in any comparable future rapid response schemes.

3.6

One of the most striking recurring sentiments in the evidence we saw and heard is that
“people do not like being told what to do”. While this is hardly surprising, what was
perhaps underestimated was the extent to which involving people in decision-making
correlates with acceptance. As Prof Lorraine Whitmarsh, Director of the UK Centre for
Climate Change and Social Transformations (CAST), told us, lack of consultation was
often the top reason for objecting to schemes like LTNs, while a sense of fairness –
firmly linked to early consultation – was one of the strongest predictors of policy support
– stronger even that the effectiveness of policies, according to her research carried out
with Joseph Sweetman of the University of Exeter in 2015. These issues were also borne
out in the Transport for All report Pave the Way, in which 75% of respondents criticised
communications on LTNs. Furthermore, the genuine involvement of local councillors,
communities and stakeholders in the design process would also help to identify potential
problems at an early-stage and ensure these could be addressed in the most
appropriate way – whether through design alterations, other mitigations or simply a
formal acknowledgement of the issue. While we did observe examples of LTNs being
tweaked during the experimental phase to take account of feedback received, such as
the moving of a modal filter in the Tulse Hill scheme in response to problems being
experienced by a local business, we consider that much more needs to be done by way
of codesign and coproduction in relation to future schemes.

3.7

A key element of design must be to tailor schemes to the specific area in which they are
introduced – a ‘one size fits all’ approach which fails to recognise local circumstances is
unlikely to be successful. We heard concerns, for example, relayed back from the
community by one commission member, about the suitability of hillier areas such as
West Norwood for LTN-style traffic reduction interventions. In such areas, where many
people may feel cycling is less of an option and also public transport coverage is less
comprehensive than, say, Brixton or the north of the borough, it is particularly important
that the sort of complementary measures mentioned in the Equality Streets report are
integrated into the scheme. When we asked Prof Aldred, who has studied LTNs across
the capital and beyond in great depth, about such issues, she concurred that schemes
in areas such as these did require more thought. The installation of more benches was
a suggestion we particularly support, while access to e-bikes, e-scooters and cargo
bikes would also be beneficial.

3.8

We mention above that the introduction of the emergency LTNs caused division and
polarisation in certain communities and one example of this which we were particularly
struck by relates to the perception of cycling. Increasing cycling is a stated aim in all
LTN-style schemes and there is no doubt that cycling is hugely beneficial to physical
13

Page 47

and mental health. However, we heard many concerns from people who believed cycling
was ‘not for them’ as it was seen as the preserve of the mainly white, male, middle class
demographic among which it is most popular. While we believe cycling can and should
be made more accessible, we also think that placing a greater emphasis on walking
would help to demonstrate that LTNs really are there to benefit all sections of society.
We heard from Prof Aldred that results from Waltham Forest – an early adopter of LTNstyle measures – and emerging findings from the emergency schemes introduced
across the capital throughout 2020 showed that most of the increase in active travel was
walking rather than cycling. The article produced by pedestrian charity London Living
Streets cited in our background documents also makes this argument. A greater
emphasis on encouraging more people to make shorter journeys on foot, therefore, is,
we feel, an important mechanism in emphasising the inclusivity of LTNs. This should
also be reflected in the imagery used in communications on active travel measures from
the outset.
3.9

The last two issues we deal with in this section are the street level signage and
exemptions. We picked up on a number of comments regarding the signage marking
the borders of the LTN areas, which seemed to lead to confusion for some people. If
there is ambiguity regarding what is permitted within the area and fines are issued to
unsuspecting motorists acting in good faith, this will impact public confidence in the
schemes. We recommend that any future measures of this kind be accompanied by
unambiguous street level signage clearly showing what is and is not allowed.
Exemptions also arose as a contentious issue in the course of our evidence gathering.
We have already highlighted the fact that the material impacts of schemes such as LTNs
are different for different sections of society, and some people will experience certain
adverse effects – the most obvious being the inconvenience of taking a longer route to
avoid the restrictions. This is of course part of the point – making shorter trips easier to
take on foot or by bike will, it is hoped, discourage people from using their cars for such
journeys. Indeed, we heard from both Prof Aldred and Prof Whitmarsh that reducing
capacity for motor traffic has been shown consistently to result in a reduction in car use,
albeit that this tends to happen over the medium to long term. We do however
acknowledge that the impacts for some people are so great that exemptions are
appropriate. This is particularly an issue for some disabled people and their carers. The
Pave the Way report articulates eloquently and forcefully the profound difficulties that
can arise for disabled people when journey times are lengthened considerably, including
exhaustion, exacerbating or worsening impairments, and costing more money. While
officers confirmed to us that there are mechanisms in place to grant certain exemptions
to the LTN restrictions – organisational blue badge holders can apply for dispensation,
for example – we believe a more comprehensive and open approach is needed in future
which better identifies those people for whom dispensations would be appropriate,
proactively and at an earlier stage.

14

Page 48

Recommendation 1
A clear and convincing case should be made for future climate emergency interventions
linked to related Council strategies (such as on health and business/economic
development), the priorities of external bodies (e.g. Transport for London) where relevant,
and published data/evidence from well-informed and trusted sources. This should include
a broad, positive vision of what the interventions are attempting to achieve, referencing
equality, health and wellbeing, and quality of life for all.

Recommendation 2
Co-design and co-production principles should be embedded in any scheme that is likely
to impact a significant portion of the borough’s population.
Recommendation 3
Clear criteria for implementation of hyper-local interventions should be linked to broader
strategic objectives (in the case of LTNs, this includes how air quality is to be improved,
the implementation of supporting measures such as electric vehicle charging points and
bike storage, and movement plans for people and business, including goals for public
transport).
Recommendation 4
It is vital that future schemes such as LTNs be implemented alongside other measures to
mitigate potential problems, based on the specifics of the locality in question and with
resident input (this could include, for example, more extensive use of benches in hilly
areas, bicycle storage and car sharing options, or responding to personal safety
concerns).
Recommendation 5
Travel interventions to support the climate emergency should have a greater focus on
encouraging accessible and inclusive active travel – particularly walking – and be
designed with surrounding areas (more broadly than just adjacent roads) in mind.
Recommendation 6
Clear and comprehensive signage at street level is required to eliminate any ambiguity as
to what is and isn’t permitted in relation to any future measures to tackle the climate
emergency.
Recommendation 7
A more open approach to possible exemptions from schemes responding to the climate
emergency is needed for those who may suffer serious detriment to their lives or
livelihoods.

15

Page 49

Section 2: Consultation, Communication & Democracy
4.1

We have already mentioned how crucial early consultation is to winning trust and what
an important part that plays in predicting success for schemes such as LTNs, as well as
noting the considerable barriers to this presented by the emergency situation in this
case. Issues surrounding consultation, communication and democracy comprise
perhaps the biggest single theme running through almost all the evidence we saw; we
have therefore chosen to devote a section of our report purely to these issues and the
lessons we believe can be learned from the LTN experience.

4.2

One of the main areas of debate we have picked up in the arguments made around
LTNs concerns air pollution. Air pollution is recognised by the World Health Organisation
(WHO) as one of the biggest threats to health we are facing today, and there is
widespread agreement that it is absolutely vital to reduce levels of pollution with the
utmost urgency for the good of public health as well as the climate. However, where
measures such as LTNs fit into this has been the subject of some conjecture. While
levels of traffic are, as expected, significantly reduced within the LTN areas, resulting in
cleaner air, a common immediate side effect is that traffic levels outside these zones
(particularly on boundary roads) can increase while people get used to the new
measures. Although the academic evidence indicates that this effect tends to subside,
as referenced in Section 1, this does take time and potentially leaves residents on the
periphery of LTN areas facing increased levels of traffic for an indeterminate period.
What this means for air pollution, however, is not entirely straightforward since, as WHO
advocate for health and air quality Rosamund Kissi-Debrah told us, the number of cars
does not necessarily directly correlate to levels of pollution – other factors, such as the
speed of traffic, are also important determinants (with gridlocked traffic being the most
polluting).

4.3

There are also potential significant equalities issues here, with older people, young
children, those with pre-existing health conditions and disabled people being more
adversely affected by poor air quality, for example. Distributional analysis of LTNs in
London, referred to in paragraph 2.9 above, showed that overall 15% of Lambeth’s
population live in LTN areas, and this rose slightly in more deprived areas. The questions
concerning the impact on boundary roads, which may have demographic differences to
areas within LTNs, leave us uncertain as to the true equalities impact (see also Section
3 and Recommendation 16).

4.4

One particular issue in Lambeth is that there is a perception that the Council’s approach
to monitoring air pollution is lacking in robustness. We deal with this in more detail in
Section 3 below. However, notwithstanding this, we feel that a major communications
strategy around air pollution is urgently required to ensure communities are wellinformed as to the causes, health implications and possible mitigations. This is in line
with the coroner’s report into the death from a rare form of asthma of Rosamund KissiDebrah’s nine-year-old daughter Ella – the first person in the UK to have air pollution
listed as a cause of death – which called upon local authorities to raise awareness about
pollution levels and expand capacity for air quality monitoring. It would also help
contextualise the argument for interventions such as LTNs around broader strategic
objectives, as we suggest in Section 1. Such a communications strategy needs to
16

Page 50

recognise the different experiences of different communities (businesses, taxi drivers,
cyclists and disabled people, for example, would all have different needs) but would help
enable individuals and organisations to become better informed about the issues and
respond in the way best suited to them.
4.5

More generally on consultation and communication, there are many learning points to
be identified. These are very well captured in the LGA publication Stakeholder
Communication in an Emergency: Lessons from Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (see
Annex C – Background Documents), which we would urge readers of this report to digest
in full, but the most pertinent is probably that “it pays to invest in doing engagement well”.
As discussed, consultation on LTNs was severely limited due to the emergency situation
(including the stipulations of the Government funding), as well as the national restrictions
put in place to protect public health under the Coronavirus Act (rendering in-person
meetings all but impossible), making the situation very difficult for the Council.

4.6

Officers explained to us that letters had been delivered to residents within the proposed
LTN areas, though acknowledged that there had been some issues with distribution in
the first instance which were later resolved by changing supplier. We also heard how
relevant email lists were used to communicate with stakeholders, people were directed
to a specific website to leave comments, and the then-portfolio holder met with dozens
of individuals and groups either virtually or in person. Many businesses were also sent
letters and some visits took place, though the feedback we received via the Council’s
Business Champion was that these were not always successful and that many affected
businesses felt they had not been adequately consulted about the plans for the schemes
and how they would operate. It was noted that, prior to the pandemic, a very detailed
engagement strategy was being delivered regarding the Brixton Liveable
Neighbourhoods project, including the production of films, liaison with schools and
Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and various other means of communication. It
was accepted that such long periods of engagement were necessary for people to feel
really informed; however, owing to the necessity to bring in the emergency LTNs very
quickly, officers did their best in the time available, taking into account existing traffic
data and information gleaned from pre-Covid consultations. We also heard how the
capacity of the Council’s Communications Team was limited after several years of
budget cuts and that their immediate focus was, quite understandably, on messaging
around emergency food supplies and public health.

4.7

The experience of LTNs and the resultant response and polarisation of views shows us
that, wherever possible, even in emergency situations, time and care must be taken to
engage properly with all stakeholders, for reasons already highlighted. This means using
a range of methods according to the intended audience, and allowing feedback to shape
the design of schemes (as per our recommendation 2 in Section 1 above) so that people
feel listened to. We also feel that the use of highly skilled independent facilitators would
be beneficial in future where proposals may be particularly controversial. We heard from
Prof Whitmarsh, for example, regarding the excellent work that organisations such as
Sustrans had carried out on diversity of methods to engage people; such an approach
would cater for a wide cross-section of people with different preferences and capabilities
and would therefore help gain an insight into the worries and concerns of different
groups.
17

Page 51

4.8

Another issue we identified is the consideration of the impacts of LTNs on groups with
protected characteristics under the Equality Act. Of particular concern was the approach
with regards to disabled people, many of whom, as we have already explored, were
considered to be significantly affected by the schemes. The Transport for All report Pave
the Way, referred to earlier, represents an excellent exploration of the issues – this
includes the need for more meaningful engagement with disabled people and
organisations to fully explore implications and potential mitigations in advance of putting
the schemes in; more accessible implementation (including considerations around
benches and the location of planters); and more dispensations for those adversely
affected. The input from Disability Advice Service Lambeth (DASL), who spoke to one
of our commission members, mirrored these issues – a reflection, no doubt, of the fact
that 60% of those interviewed for Pave the Way came from Lambeth. It is noted that
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) were completed for the emergency LTN schemes
and that these were considered by the Council’s internal Corporate EIA Panel as per
usual practice, and no significant negative impacts were identified for protected groups.
However, we are of the view that there were clearly deficiencies in this approach and
we suggest that, wherever possible, for future such situations where a given
characteristic is likely to experience a particularly profound impact, appropriate input is
sought from relevant individuals or organisations outside the Council to bring external
expertise and added rigour to the EIA process. This might include, for example, input
from DASL – who told us they were not consulted on the LTN EIAs – on disabilities
issues.

4.9

We next turn to the Council’s internal processes and how these may be better used to
communicate more effectively. We heard from officers how existing email lists were one
of the methods used to communicate with relevant stakeholders regarding the LTNs,
and this is of course entirely pragmatic and appropriate, particularly in circumstances
where in-person meetings could not be held. However, it seems to us that, while the
email lists in question no doubt included many relevant stakeholders, there was little if
any use of existing communications channels outside the Sustainable Transport,
Environment & Clean Air brief. This meant that certain sections of the borough’s
population who may be affected by the LTNs were not engaged in the way that they
could have been. For example, more effective contact could have been made with
businesses by asking officers within Enterprise, Jobs & Skills to send out
communications to their existing contact lists; ditto Adult Social Care and carers’ groups,
Housing and Residents’ Associations; and Community Safety and local neighbourhood
policing teams. It is also more important than ever that climate change implications are
properly considered in all Council strategy and policy documents; this can only help
increase coordination between Council departments, with the communications benefits
that brings.

4.10 We also feel that more could have been done to utilise key individuals to help get the
message across to their communities. This includes ward councillors but also other
community leaders such as Tenants & Residents’ Association chairs, faith leaders or
Business Improvement District managers. We heard from our academic witnesses how
important such “messengers” are in helping to engage their communities and this could
in turn reduce the sort of polarisation of views we have seen and help make issues less
18

Page 52

contentious. As hinted at previously, it is important that communications are honest in
recognising the potential drawbacks of schemes and focus on facts rather than
perceptions – couched, again, in inclusive language which uses wider community
benefits as their basis.

Recommendation 8
A major communications strategy is required regarding air pollution. This should focus on
the causes of pollution; health implications; measurement/monitoring in the borough; and
actions that can be taken by individuals and organisations to reduce and mitigate the
impacts. Within this should be a recognition that people’s experiences are going to be
different according to their personal circumstances.
Recommendation 9
Consultation on future measures related to the climate emergency should be carried out
via a range of methods including letter drops, local meetings/events and door to door
engagement where necessary – as well as online – in order to gather the widest possible
range of views, thereby enabling potential issues to be considered and, where possible,
mitigated prior to implementation. With regards to public meetings, skilled independent
facilitators should be employed to mediate between different groups where strong
conflicting opinions exist.
Recommendation 10
The impact of future climate emergency measures on groups with protected
characteristics under the Equality Act requires thorough consideration prior to
implementation. Where a certain group is likely to be particularly affected, a representative
of a relevant outside organisation should be co-opted onto the Equality Impact
Assessment Panel. This is especially important when it comes to disabled people.
Recommendation 11
Climate change implications should be considered in all Council strategy and policy
documents.
Recommendation 12
A greater focus on cross-departmental working is required to ensure appropriate expertise
is brought in from all relevant areas. There should also be better use of existing
communications channels (e.g. between Adult Social Care and carers’ groups; Enterprise,
Jobs & Skills and business forums; Community Safety and local policing teams; and
Housing and residents’ groups) when communicating on climate emergency issues.
Recommendation 13
The use of stakeholder groups, community leaders and elected representatives to
communicate and engage with residents and businesses about the importance and
urgency of measures to combat the climate emergency should be prioritised. This should
encompass a wide demographic and include frequent messaging on timelines, refinement,
monitoring and evaluation. Communications should be honest (acknowledging
difficulties/drawbacks) and rebut myths by focusing on evidence vs perception. Messaging
should be inclusive, focusing on wider community benefits and avoiding language which
appears to penalise certain groups.

19

Page 53

Section 3: Monitoring and Evaluation
5.1

The final section of our report concerns the monitoring and evaluation of LTNs and the
lessons we believe can be highlighted for future application. This reflects another of
the principal themes which came to light during our investigations – for interventions
such as LTNs to be deemed a success or failure, there needs to be clarity around
success criteria: what will be measured, how will it be measured, and over what time
period.

5.2

Given the relatively recent implementation of LTN schemes and the length of time it
takes to properly monitor effects and draw conclusions, the evidence for LTNs is still
emerging. However, there are some studies we can draw on when seeking to assess
how effective they may be. This includes the research conducted by Aldred and
Goodman in 2020 which reports on analysis of impacts of active travel interventions in
Outer London between 2016 and 2019, which concludes that LTNs lead to decreased
car ownership and use, and increased active travel. Data from Waltham Forest, where
LTN-style measures were first announced in 2014, shows that car ownership fell by
around 7% within three years of the schemes being implemented, while a study by
King’s College London focusing on the same borough – the first of its kind to attempt
to quantify the effect of increased active travel on health outcomes – reports that
increased walking and cycling arising from active travel interventions would amount to
an additional 7 to 9 months of life expectancy for a child born in 2006. Further, the
Rapid Evidence Assessment produced by the Bristol Advisory Committee on Climate
Change cites a “substantial body of evidence showing that reallocating road space
from cars to active modes tends to reduce car use in the long term”; while London
Living Streets, in a 2019 article, refer to similar evidence to support the conclusion that
“low-traffic neighbourhoods do not simply shift traffic from one place to another, but
lead to an overall reduction in the numbers of motor vehicles on road”. Nevertheless,
experiences can vary in different locations and each requires robust monitoring in its
own right.

5.3

Lambeth Council published its LTN Monitoring Strategy in December 2020. The
Monitoring Strategy explains the main objectives of the schemes – to achieve “a
reduction in through motor traffic within LTN areas; and an overall reduction of motor
vehicle movements across the area, when considering boundary roads and the inner
area together”. It also explains how, once traffic patterns settle down, a wide range of
other indicators would be monitored, including traffic speeds and the level of collisions,
air quality, and active travel levels. Three stages are envisaged: an initial adjustment
phase in which people become aware of the LTNs but have not yet changed their
travel habits; a settling down period during which it is anticipated people begin to adapt
and some of the aims of the schemes may start to be met; and finally, a third stage in
which the LTN would be in “regular use” and firmer conclusions could be drawn as to
the success or otherwise of the measures. Finally, it sets out the data that will be used
– most notably traffic counts, traffic speeds and air quality modelling (more on this
below), but also compliance levels, feedback from stakeholders and business
engagement.

20

Page 54

5.4

At our witness session with the then-Deputy Leader and officers we asked several
questions about the Monitoring Strategy, reflecting some of the concerns we had
heard from the community. When asking about specific thresholds for intervention – for
example, whether a particular percentage increase in traffic levels on boundary roads
would trigger certain action – we were told it was not possible to do this as the
schemes would be judged on a case-by-case basis, and the response would be
different depending on what type of road it was. We also queried the situation
regarding traffic counts and officers explained these were not being conducted at that
time (March 2021) due to abnormal traffic conditions owing to the lockdown measures
in place at the time. The first major rounds of traffic counts had been carried out in
Autumn 2020, when levels were close to normal, but would not resume until the
lockdown was relaxed. In response to a specific question regarding what consideration
there had been of the potential for displacement of traffic from LTN areas leading to
increased traffic on arterial roads, we were told that the necessity to accelerate the
planned LTN schemes due to Government guidance had meant implementing them on
a trial basis and monitoring impacts in real time (rather than the more considered
approach initially planned under the 2019 Transport Strategy, which envisaged far
more detailed planning and assessment prior to implementation).

5.5

What is clear is that, given the strong views on either side of the argument, monitoring
of schemes like these needs to be based on the strongest possible evidence in order
that the conclusions command respect and cannot be easily rebutted or undermined.
While this clearly means traffic volumes and air quality data, we believe more
prominence should be given to the anticipated wider benefits to population health and
safety, such as the impact on traffic collisions and health outcomes (while recognising
these take some time to assess, as with the King’s report). Equally, these criteria
should better reflect the broader strategic aims of the authority, as referenced in
Sections 1 and 2.

5.6

We had some concerns regarding the time periods connected to the expected
outcomes in relation to LTNs. It is accepted that data collection and comparison during
the pandemic was a significant challenge due to the abnormal conditions associated
with successive lockdowns, and that the circumstances of each traffic intervention are
unique to the area in question. We have also already noted how some positive effects
from interventions such as these can take a long time – up to three years – to be
realised. However, communities are understandably concerned at how long any
possible negative effects should be tolerated as schemes bed in. For example,
Rosamund Kissi-Debrah explained to us that around 8-12 children a year died from
asthma, and these numbers had remained fairly constant for some time, yet during the
first Covid-19 lockdown in 2020, no child in the UK died from asthma. The first casualty
then happened just after the lockdown was lifted. In light of these very real effects on
people’s health, we do feel that it is vital monitoring strategies are clear, not just on
how decisions will be made, but when.

5.7

The scope of monitoring was another issue we explored. There is much debate as to
what constitutes “the wider area” over which an overall reduction in traffic is expected,
and we noted concerns from various residents’ groups that the way the traffic system
behaves due to road closures such as those in LTN areas can have a much wider
21

Page 55

impact than just a few surrounding streets. Officers showed us a map of traffic count
locations but, while many in number, we found that certain locations where residents
had perceived substantial increases in traffic, ostensibly connected to LTN
interventions, were not in fact monitored. This makes it very difficult to paint an
accurate overall picture of the effects of the measures. We therefore believe a more
holistic approach is needed in future as focusing on boundary roads, while important,
is not sufficient to determine the overall impact. Also necessary to take account of is
the effect of other works such as road repairs or planned utility works which may
significantly affect routes and traffic flows for a considerable period of time. If not
properly considered, these present inherent difficulties in thoroughly and objectively
assessing the impact of measures such as LTNs.
5.8

Our biggest concern around monitoring, though, is on air quality. We heard from
officers how there are currently only three permanent air quality monitoring stations in
Lambeth and, while additional smaller monitors were being trialled, there were issues
with the reliability of the data. This means that the approach to monitoring the air
quality impacts of the LTNs relies heavily on a modelling approach using data on traffic
volumes and speeds, weather, and other inputs such as urban topography to simulate
air pollution levels in a given area. Whilst we accept there is a certain rigour to this
approach, with the software used being a market leader widely used in the industry
and the data being independently validated twice, we believe there is no substitute for
robust and accurate monitoring of actual air pollution levels, using proper specialist
equipment dedicated to the purpose to obtain real-world data. Indeed, we feel that
these deficiencies in Lambeth’s air quality monitoring regime, as well as reporting,
make it particularly difficult to set out a definitive picture as to how schemes like LTNs
are performing, and that this only adds to the amount of conjecture, mistrust and
speculation which swirl around the various arguments on either side. We therefore
recommend that urgent action is needed to improve both the scope and accuracy of air
quality monitoring across the borough, and suggest that appointing an appropriate
independent organisation with specialism in this field may be a good way of winning
back trust on this issue (for example, we note that Southwark commissioned Friends of
the Earth to carry out an air quality data audit in 2017).

5.9

Finally, we make two broader recommendations aimed at ensuring Lambeth reflects
best practice in its future work to respond to the climate emergency declaration passed
back in 2019, with which we began this report. Firstly, we have referred on a number
of occasions to the Bristol Advisory Committee on Climate Change. This is an
independent, technical committee whose members have wide-ranging expertise on
climate change issues, and provides technical advice to Bristol’s One City Boards. We
note that this innovative approach is endorsed by the Chair of the national Committee
on Climate Change, Lord Deben, and believe this represents a particularly good
governance model which Lambeth should aim to replicate. Secondly, we believe that
the Council would benefit from bringing in more external expertise when it comes to
independent research connected to monitoring of climate emergency measures, and
suggest partnering with local institutions such as universities to achieve this.

22

Page 56

Recommendation 14
Monitoring criteria should be evidence-based and include wider benefits (such as, in the
case of LTNs, impact on road traffic collisions and health).
Recommendation 15
Monitoring strategies should be clear about the time period over which certain
benefits/outcomes are expected to be realised.
Recommendation 16
Monitoring of travel interventions should include the effects on borough wide traffic, not
just on boundary roads but more broadly.
Recommendation 17
Monitoring needs to take into account interruptions to traffic movements in the wider area,
such as significant road repairs or long-term utility works, which may have an impact on
traffic flows.
Recommendation 18
There is an urgent need to improve the scope and accuracy of air quality monitoring
across Lambeth. Consideration should be given to commissioning a trusted outside
organisation to help achieve this.
Recommendation 19
The establishment of a specific body to oversee the Council’s actions to tackle the climate
emergency, including a broad range of representatives from within and outside the
authority, should be considered.
Recommendation 20
The Council should consider partnering with relevant local institutions (e.g. universities) to
conduct independent research into longer term monitoring of climate emergency
measures and publicise results.

23

Page 57

Annex A: Acknowledgements
The Commission would like to thank all those who have contributed to its work, whether
directly through submission of written or oral evidence, or indirectly through
posting/publishing articles and opinions online which the Commission used as part of its
evidence base. These are too numerous to mention in full but particular thanks goes to the
following in-person witnesses:









Councillor Claire Holland (Leader of the Council; formerly Deputy Leader
[Sustainable Transport, Environment & Clean Air])
Hannah Jameson (Assistant Director, Sustainable Development and Climate Change
Response)
Michael Munnelly (Assistant Director, Infrastructure, Environment, Public Realm &
Climate Change Delivery)
Simon Phillips (Head of Transport Strategy & Programme)
Nick McCoy (Senior Policy & Communications Officer)
Prof Rachel Aldred (Professor of Transport and Director of Active Travel Academy,
University of Westminster)
Prof Lorraine Whitmarsh (Professor of Psychology, University of Bath and Director,
Centre for Climate Change & Social Transformations)
Rosamund Kissi-Debrah (Co-Founder, Ella Roberta Family Foundation and World
Health Organisation advocate for health and air quality)

24

Page 58

Annex B: Commission Scope
Scrutiny Commission Proposal and Scoping Template
Scrutiny Principles agreed by Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) Chair and ViceChairs
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Commissions it sponsors should as far as
possible:
- Be independent from the administration and stakeholders;
- Be accessible and inclusive of everyone in the borough;
- Enable decisions to be challenged constructively;
- Strive for better services that produce the best outcomes;
- Base its decisions and recommendations on the best evidence available;
- Follow up its recommendations.
Commission members:

Councillor Mary Atkins (Chair)
Councillor Marianna Masters
Councillor Irfan Mohammed
Councillor Paul Gadsby
Councillor Jane Pickard
Councillor Nicole Griffiths

Note: Commission members’ role is to represent the views of service users while also
balancing the interests of the Council more widely. They are accountable for the project’s
success and delivery of its outcomes.
While the Chair has overall control it is expected that a collaborative, evidence-based
approach is taken which commands the support of all commission members.

Councillor(s)
submitting proposal
Working title
Reason for inquiry
and desired
outcome

Mary Atkins
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods: Lessons for the Climate Change
Emergency.
This constitutes the business case for the commission and must be
completed in detail, addressing the below questions. This will be
reviewed periodically to ensure continued business justification.


Does the issue relate to one or more Borough Plan priorities?

In January 2019 Lambeth became the first London borough to declare
a climate change emergency. Work has progressed within the council
on ensuring action on climate change is embedded in council policies
and plans. In 2019 the Council’s Transport Strategy followed by the
Transport Strategy Implementation Plan were published following 2
years of full consultation. The policy highlighted the council’s
commitment to 5 guiding principles:



Sustainable Growth



Efficient and Connected
25

Page 59



Inclusive and accessible



Active and Safe, and



Carbon Neutral and Clean Air.

The TSIP sets out the criteria by which the council will prioritise
neighbourhood traffic reduction interventions, where there is evidence
of “rat running”, where school pupils are affected, air quality is poor,
and where a healthy route is proposed. The TSIP was intended to be
a process and to provide monitoring mechanism.

This relates in particular to the following Borough Plan priorities/goals:
Making Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest
(manage Lambeth’s neighbourhoods so that the feel safe and
welcoming; maintain attractive neighbourhoods… that support and
encourage healthier lifestyles; reduce our carbon emissions)
Promote care and independence (support people to live longer and
healthier lives)


Does the issue have a potential impact for one or more
section(s) of the population?

Lambeth has a diverse population with poorer areas recognised to
have worse health outcomes, less car ownership, fewer opportunities
to cycle /exercise. The reasons for these are well documented in
various health audits (including the Annual Public Health Report 2020)
but have been exacerbated by Covid-19.

The debate about low traffic neighbourhoods has been characterised
by the different needs of differing populations. Small businesses, low
income v high income, families with children v those with none,
cultural differences and perceptions of safety. The needs of the
disabled. The right to car ownership. Car owners v cyclists.


Will a commission add value to the Council, and/or its
partners’, overall performance?

This is the first introduction of a strategy related to climate change that
affects significant areas of the population. Lessons learnt here will
inform how other strategies can be brought in that will need the

26

Page 60

consent of the population to implement, thereby allowing such
measures to be enacted in the most effective manner.


Is the issue strategic and significant?

Yes, the Climate Change Emergency is influencing all areas of the
Council’s work.
Will a commission contribute to the council’s financial strategy?
Other Councils (for example, Wandsworth and Bromley) have wasted
considerable amounts of money implementing and then cancelling
LTNs. Bringing significant change in a short period of time is resource
heavy. Any lessons learnt will reduce officer time and therefore
support efficient budget use.


Is the commission likely to result in a high proportion of ‘goldmedal recommendations’ i.e. ones which are well evidenced
and result in a shift in policy, lead to resource savings, improve
services, make things fairer or solve problems?

This commission will give residents a voice in solving local issues.
This will improve outcomes and aid understanding between different
groups. It will aid the local population’s understanding of council
processes make recommendations to the Council on how Climate
change actions can “take citizens with them”.


Is scrutiny activity timely?

Yes, there is considerable debate in neighbourhoods where LTNs are
being introduced as to whether they are the “right thing”; do they
support local business, is it making “middle class” areas safer while
displacing pollution on to main roads where less affluent people live?
Are emergency vehicles being delayed? Is it adding too much time to
key worker journeys etc.
How can communities be consulted under emergency conditions?
How are expected outcomes communicated and measured?
How can misinformation be counteracted and by whom?
How can council processes be “demystified”?

27

Page 61

Commencing this commission now will help address these issues and
ensure that findings can feed into the Citizens’ Assembly which will
explore issues of behaviour change and citizen buy-in.


Will scrutiny involvement be duplicating other work?

This work will complement policy that sustainable neighbourhood staff
are developing to monitor impact and deliver change. Efforts will be
made to ensure the relevant Cabinet Member and lead officers are
sighted on the commission’s progress in order that emerging findings
can be taken on board as the work progresses.


Is it an issue for concern to partners and stakeholders?

Yes, of significant concern to residents, climate change organisations,
community groups and academics.


Is it an issue of community concern?

Yes, as evidenced by the considerable amount of debate locally (the
deputations received by Full Council in October 2020 both against and
in favour of LTNs demonstrate the strength of feeling).
Links to Borough
Plan Outcomes /
Resident Priorities
Time constraints

See above (under Reason for Inquiry)
If the commission needs to be considered within a specific time frame
please state here and why.
The temporary traffic orders which authorise the LTN expire in 2021/2;
however, it is expected officers will start evaluation in the next 6
months. It will therefore be useful for the scrutiny to be able to feed
into the evaluation process as that happens.

Core Questions /
Terms of Reference

What are the core questions the commission is seeking to answer (no
more than three)? These will form the Terms of Reference of the
commission
What is the driver for implementing emergency LTNs? Health, Covid
19, increasing activity, improving the environment, financial?
How will LTNs be evaluated, and after what period? What is the
baseline of objective data that will be measured from? How will local
people/stakeholders be involved?
How will communities/stakeholders be involved in implementation of
future policies that are hyper local and controversial?

What will not be
included

This will assist in setting the boundaries for the commission’s work
and prevent ‘scope-creep’.

28

Page 62

Policy decisions around the evaluation/future of the current LTNs (the
commission will explore how this has been done but with a view to
establishing best practice recommendations for future emergency
measures)
The climate change emergency declaration
The Lambeth Transport Strategy and Implementation Plan
Risks (mitigation)

What risks are there to the commission completing its work? This
could include political, economic, social, technological, legal or
environmental factors [PESTLE analysis]. Other pieces of work the
commission may be dependent upon should also be included.
The main risks concern officer or witness availability (particularly in
light of the new lockdown announced in January 2021), both of which
could necessitate extensions to the planned timetable.

Equality & Diversity
considerations

Identify any Equalities and Diversity issues that may arise – this may
include positive or negative impacts on those with protected
characteristics (for Lambeth this includes socio-economic status,
health, and English as a Second Language as well as the 9 outlined in
law)
To be considered in depth as the commission progresses. Issues
initially identified include accessibility of communications and possible
adverse impacts of road closures on older people (e.g. limiting access
for taxis).

Possible co-options

Would the commission’s work benefit from having a co-optee(s)?
Not required. Diverse points of view will be sought via witnesses.

Key stakeholders /
Potential witnesses

Who will the commission wish to hear from in order to meet its Terms
of Reference, and how do you plan to engage them? Include
opportunities to involve the public/service users/voluntary sector/other
authorities//lobby groups/academics/private sector etc
Potential witnesses include:

 Cllr Holland and relevant officers from Transport,
Communications and Climate Change Response
 Businesses (both via BIDs and small business owners in
their own right)
 Disabled groups
 Patient groups (cf the Lambeth Hospital issue above) –
both in relation to physical and mental health (on which
Black Thrive may also have useful input)
 Different political perspectives (including from Cllr
Briggs)
 Residents’ groups from affected areas, including just
outside the LTNs – to include estates as well as streets
 Community groups who provided their own research
such as Liveable Wells
29

Page 63

 Cycling/active travel groups (e.g. Lambeth Cyclists, Living
Streets, Mums for Lungs)
 Police Safer Neighbourhood Teams
 Safer Neighbourhood Panels
 Other boroughs, particularly Waltham Forest (who
introduced their Mini-Holland scheme around five years
ago and so would be able to speak with a certain degree
of hindsight and perspective with regards to success
measures and resident reaction)
 Academic experts (e.g. Rachel Aldred [Professor of
Transport at the University of Westminster] and Anna
Goodman [Assistant Professor, Faculty of Epidemiology
and Population Health, London School of Hygiene and
Tropical Medicine])
It will be important to liaise with decision makers to ensure those
groups who have engaged in the process thus far have the
opportunity to be involved in the scrutiny.
Portfolio holder(s)

Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment &
Clean Air): Councillor Claire Holland

Research/Evidence

What information will the commission need to meet its Terms of
Reference?
To be determined as the commission progresses but to include:
 information from academic experts
 documentation from the UK Climate Change Assembly
 information on other boroughs’ experiences of implementing,
monitoring and amending LTN schemes
 internal documentation on implementation/rational for
schemes, monitoring strategies, how feedback is considered and
responded to in the experimental phase

Potential site visits

Would the commission’s work benefit from any visits?
Potential site visits to LB Waltham Forest Mini Holland scheme (an
early adopter of LTN-style measures) and observation of existing
Lambeth schemes which have caused controversy, provided these
can be done in a Covid-secure way.

Commission format
and Outline Plan

Commission format could include (but is not limited to):
- One-off meeting akin to a single-issue OSC
- One-day stakeholder summit at which a variety of views can
be taken
- Longer series of themed meetings
Please set out below an outline plan including timelines (this should
take into account the following phases: (i) agreement of scope; (ii)
evidence gathering [research]; (iii): stakeholder engagement; (iv)
determination of recommendations; (v) reporting):

30

Page 64

Agreement of Scope: December ,
Research: December/January
Synthesis published research January
Identify gaps January
Stakeholder summit February
Recommendations: March
Publish draft report: March / April

31

Page 65

Annex C: Background Documents
LB Lambeth Lambeth’s Borough Plan Review (July 2019)
LB Lambeth Lambeth’s Response to the Climate Emergency (July 2019)
LB Lambeth Full Council motion to declare a climate emergency (Jan 2019)
LB Lambeth Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission Report (2016)
LB Lambeth Events Scrutiny Commission (2019)
LB Lambeth Transport Strategy and Implementation Plan (2019)
LB Lambeth Covid-19 Response: Emergency Decision: Transport Strategy Covid-19
Emergency Response and Appendix (April 2020)
LB Lambeth Air Quality Action Plan 2017-22
LB Lambeth Air Quality Annual Status Report for 2019 (Aug 2020)
LB Lambeth Climate Change and Health: Annual Public Health Report 2020 (2020)
LB Lambeth Covid-19 Transport Strategy Programme: LTN Monitoring Strategy (2021)
LB Lambeth Officer Delegated Decision Report Railton Low Traffic Neighbourhood
Experimental Scheme (Dec 2020)
LB Lambeth Officer Delegated Decision Report Tulse Hill Low Traffic Neighbourhood
Experimental Scheme (Dec 2020)
LB Lambeth Officer Delegated Decision Report Ferndale Low Traffic Neighbourhood
Experimental Scheme (March 2021)
LB Lambeth Officer Delegated Decision Report Streatham Hill Low Traffic Neighbourhood
Experimental Scheme (April 2021)
LB Lewisham Report to Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel: Update on temporary
measures to support safer walking and cycling in response to the Covid-19 pandemic (Nov
2020)
LB Southwark Air Quality Annual Status Report 2019 (May 2020)
LB Southwark Environment Scrutiny Commission Air Quality Report (July 2020)
LB Waltham Forest Report to Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee: Update on the Council’s
Air Quality Action Plan (Sept 2020)
King’s College London Waltham Forest study of life expectancy benefits of increased
physical activity from walking and cycling (2018)
Local Government Association Stakeholder engagement in an emergency: lessons from low
traffic neighbourhoods (May 2021)

32

Page 66

Bristol Advisory Committee on Climate Change Rapid Evidence Assessment: Liveable and
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (March 2021)
Centre for Climate Change and Social Transformations [CAST] – Briefing 4: How Has Covid19 Impacted Low Carbon Lifestyles and Attitudes Towards Climate Action? (Aug 2020)
Centre for Climate Change and Social Transformations [CAST] – Briefing 5: Tracking the
Effect of Covid-19 on Low Carbon Behaviours and Attitudes to Climate Change (Dec 2020)
Howarth et al Building a Social Mandate for Climate Action: Lessons from Covid-19 (July
2020)
Goodman et al The Impact of Introducing a Low Traffic Neighbourhood on Fire Service
Emergency Response Times in Waltham Forest, London (Dec 2020)
Aldred & Goodman Low Traffic Neighbourhoods, Car Use, and Active Travel: Evidence from
the People and Places Survey of Outer London Active Travel Interventions (2020)
Aldred & Verlinghieri LTNs for All? Mapping the Extent of London’s New Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods (Nov 2020)
Sweetman & Whitmarsh Climate Justice: High-Status Ingroup Social Models Increase ProEnvironmental Action Through Making Actions Seem More Moral (2015)
Laverty et al Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and Population Health (Feb 2021)
Courts and Tribunals Judiciary Coroner’s Report (Ella Kissi-Debrah) (April 2021)
Greater London Assembly Environment Committee Clearing the Air: Pollution in London
(Feb 2021)
Transport for All Pave the Way: The Impact of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) on
Disabled People, and the Future of Accessible Active Travel (Jan 2021)
UK Climate Assembly The Path to Net Zero (2020)
The Guardian London teenagers’ road signs highlight effect of toxic air on people of colour
(March 2021)
The Guardian Opponents of LTNS say they delay emergency services – but look at the facts
(April 2021)
London Living Streets Evaporating traffic? Impact of low-traffic neighbourhoods on main
roads (July 2019)

33

Page 67

Agenda Item 5

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 12 October 2021
Report title: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Director of Legal and Governance: Tasnim Shawkat
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic ServicesOfficer, Legal and
Governance; 020 7926 8703, mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report sets out the committee’s draft work programme, provides an update on and record of actions
or recommendations arising from previous meetings, and provides councillors with information relevant
to the management of the committee.

Finance summary
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The work
programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the Legal and
Governance Directorate.

Recommendations
1.

That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions (Appendix 1) be noted.

2.

That members agree a meeting theme/agenda items for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting scheduled for 9 December 2021.

Page 68
1.

Context

1.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the
whole range of the Authority’s functions and responsibilities, as well as other public service
providers’ work and its impact on the local community. The committee’s remit extends to all
matters which impact on the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of those who live, work,
study or use services in the borough.

1.2

OSC also exercises the council’s statutory scrutiny functions in relation to health, and crime and
disorder. The committee has responsibility for the review and scrutiny of matters relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and related services in Lambeth (and any substantial
variation thereof) in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and relevant regulations.
The committee is also the borough’s designated ‘Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee’ in
accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006 and has responsibility for scrutinising the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership.

1.3

At the AGM on 21 April 2021, Council agreed the committee membership and meeting dates for
the 2021/22 municipal year. Further information can be found on the Council’s website at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=113

1.4

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSC) established in April 2017 is continuing in
2021/22 and is scheduled to meet three times over the course of the year, a reduction in meetings
from previous years. Cllr Joshua Lindsey, the Chair of CSSC, also sits on OSC in order to ensure
coordination of work between the two bodies, eliminate any potential duplication and feed in
findings from CSSC into OSC, and vice versa, where relevant.

1.5

In addition, a new Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee (HSSC) is being established this municipal
year with the remit to scrutinise the full range of housing management services which fall under the
control of the Director of Housing, together with Private Sector Enforcement and Regulation. HSSC
is chaired by Cllr Mary Atkins, OSC Vice Chair.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to consider its work programme at each meeting.
Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at relatively short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme assists in the commissioning of reports and helps to
ensure that planned work is considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The committee’s draft work programme and action monitoring table are attached at Appendix 1.
The work programme is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising
or timetabling of new items. Only those actions which are amber or red rated from the 2020/21
round of meetings are included. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to
ensure that previous actions and requests have been completed in full.

2.3

Arrangements for future meetings are yet to be confirmed but suggested outline themes are set out
in the appendix to this report, taking into account the committee’s previous work and issues
identified. Members are invited to discuss and agree a meeting focus and agenda items for the
committee meeting scheduled for 9 December in discussing this item.

2.4

Scrutiny Commissions
All proposals for scrutiny commissions should be submitted to the Scrutiny Team and will be
considered by the OSC Chair and Vice Chairs in the first instance. Councillors submitting a

Page 69
proposal for a commission are asked to provide outline information using the commission scoping
template. Commissions can only be progressed when adequate resource has become available in
the Democratic Services Team. The table included in Appendix 1 summarises the status of all
current commissions.
2.5

2.6

2.7

In December 2020 OSC agreed to establish a commission on Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs)
– specifically the processes used to introduce and evaluate such emergency measures and
identifying lessons for future such situations. The commission met on 17 December 2020 to refine
its terms of reference and agree an outline work plan and has since met a further seven times,
taking evidence from the Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and
Clean Air) and officers regarding the emergency LTN rollout in Lambeth; considering a variety of
research papers, articles and reports on LTNs more widely; examining common themes in
objections to LTN schemes; and hearing from two university professors with specialisms in active
travel, and attitudes and behaviour change in relation to climate change initiatives. The
commission’s draft report is included in the agenda for this meeting, for approval before it is
presented to Cabinet later in the autumn.
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Our Healthier South East London JHOSC
Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(JHOSC) comprises representatives of the six boroughs across South East London - the London
Boroughs of Bromley, Bexley, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark and the Royal Borough of
Greenwich. The Joint Committee’s role is to scrutinise health services across South East London,
in particular the proposals and consultation processes of the NHS Our Healthier South East
London programme to ensure that improved, safe and sustainable health services are delivered
across the region. The Council’s representatives are currently Cllr Marianna Masters, who is Vice
Chair of the JHOSC, and Cllr Rezina Chowdhury. The first meeting of the municipal year took
place online (informally) on 30 June 2021. Further information on the committee’s work can be
found at: https://cds.bromley.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=714 .
Lambeth Hospital JHOSC
In late 2019 a service change proposal was received from NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning
Group and their provider, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) regarding
the potential reconfiguration of mental health inpatient services at Lambeth Hospital; specifically
the transfer of one psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) and four acute wards to a new facility on
the Maudsley Hospital site, located in the London Borough of Southwark. Following conversations
with commissioners and colleagues in Southwark it was decided that this proposal amounted to a
substantial reconfiguration proposal covering more than one local authority area (in accordance
with the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013) and, as such, a JHOSC has been established between the London Boroughs of
Lambeth and Southwark to scrutinise the plans.

2.8

This JHOSC held its first meeting on 6 February 2020, during which the Terms of Reference and
consultation plans were approved. Last year, the committee conducted a virtual tour of the
Lambeth Hospital site and a fly-through of Douglas Bennett House, which will be built on the
Maudsley Hospital site. In addition to the tour, information was provided on the need for change
while updates were provided on the consultation process and the timeframe for decision making.

2.9

The consultation ran from 4 March until 31 May and the JHOSC met on 28 May 2020 to consider,
and respond to, the proposals in more detail. A meeting on 30 June allowed further scrutiny, and
recommendations to be made, before the South East London Clinical Commissioning Group made

Page 70
its final decision to relocate four acute wards and the Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU) from
Lambeth Hospital to the Maudsley site. These proposals were supported by the JHOSC. However,
an additional meeting was held in January 2021 to ensure monitoring of progress. Moving
forwards, the Committee will continue to be briefed on developments informally and, if required, will
hold further meetings ahead of the opening of Douglas Bennett House in early 2023.
2.10 The Council’s representatives are Cllr Marianna Masters, the Chair, Cllr Joshua Lindsey and Cllr
Rezina Chowdhury.
Borough Plan
2.11 Lambeth’s Borough Plan sets out the outcomes and objectives that the Council is trying to achieve;
these can be a useful tool for scrutiny members in their holding to account role; and, to support the
consideration, identification, and prioritisation of work programme items. The Borough Plan is
based around five big ambitions:
a.
enable sustainable growth and investment;
b.
increase community resilience;
c.
promote care and independence by reforming services;
d.
make Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest; and,
e.
be passionate about equality, strengthening diversity, and delivering inclusion.
Forward Plan
2.12 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing
Board) will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which
will:
(1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
(2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in
excess of £500,000; and/or
(3) Have a significant impact on:
(a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth; or
(b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number of
people living or working in an area; or,
(c) communities of interest
2.13 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee might
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RD=0&RPId=137&bcr=1

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the
Legal and Governance Directorate.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

Page 71
5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in
accordance with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6).
Suggestions are also invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community
leadership role and from members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the
submission of suggestions and for public notice questions.

6.

Risk management

6.1

None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Page 72
Audit Trail
Name/Position
Councillor Liz Atkins
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Director Corporate
Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
David Rose, Democratic
Services

Lambeth directorate/
department or partner

Date
Sent

Date
Received

Chair, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC)

01.09.21

09.09.21

Finance and Investment

20.08.21

23.08.21

Legal and Governance

20.08.21

24.08.21

Legal and Governance

20.08.21

27.08.21

Comments
in para:

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
09.09.21
09.09.21
No
No
N/A
N/A
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Lambeth Council Constitution 22.01.20
Appendix 1: OSC Work Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX 1
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2021-22 WORK PROGRAMME


7 June 2021 – Procurement / Developer Contributions

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations
Report on performance against stated
outcomes/KPIs since the policy was
introduced and how social value
commitments are monitored/assessed.

Developer
Contributions &
Neighbourhood
CIL Delivery
Framework

To respond to the OSC
recommendation of 23.09.20 as follows:
“That further transparency is needed
regarding developer contributions. This
should include publishing details on the
Council website of where Community
Infrastructure Levy payments are
generated and spent (over the last five
years in each ward); a list of projects
funded by CIL, NCIL and S106; and the
criteria for each funding stream”

Draft deadline: 17 May
Final deadline: 25 May
Agenda publication date: 27 May

Visits

Witnesses

Genine
Whitehorne

N/A

Yasmin Ibison (Back
Thrive); Simon Hannah
(Unison); Cllr Adrian
Garden

Rob Bristow

N/A

Cllr Ben Kind

Background information

Recommendations to be
considered ahead of
Cabinet decision scheduled
for July 2021.

Page 73

Responsible
Procurement
Policy Review

Lead Officer



14 July 2021 – Health and Social Care

Item / topic

Information on the commissioning
framework; different models/types of care
homes; impact of C-19 and Brexit;
monitoring and inspection arrangements;
challenges moving forward, including for
staff, carers and service providers. This will
incorporate requested information on
Minnie Kidd House.

Lead
Officer

Visits

Fiona
Connolly /
Jane
Bowie

N/A

Witnesses

Care home providers,
including a core block
provider and a smaller
unit, with input from a
manager and care staff.
An aligned professional –
e.g. a GP or a public
health officer who’s
worked alongside the
commissioning team.
Service users and carers
Healthwatch Lambeth
Age UK Lambeth
Lambeth Keep Our NHS
Public

Draft deadline: 24 June
Final deadline: 2 July
Agenda publication date: 6 July

Background information

Page 74

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery

Aims / objectives and recommendations



12 October 2021
Item / topic

Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods
Scrutiny
Commission – Final
Report

To provide an update on the issues
covered by committee in July 2020,
with additional information on Air
Quality Reporting, the work of the
Citizens’ Assembly (including next
steps) and information/data to help
quantify the health impacts of air
pollution across Lambeth.
To provide data on road
accidents/collisions across the
borough for the last five years. To
include an explanation, with
benchmarking against other
boroughs, and details on work that is
taking place to reduce road danger,
especially for younger people.
For OSC, as the parent Committee, to
consider and agree the final report
from the LTN Scrutiny Commission
ahead of this going to Cabinet for a
response.

Draft deadline: 21 September
Final deadline: 29 September
Agenda publication date: 4 October

Lead Officer

Hannah
Jameson

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

TBC

Councillor Joanna
Reynolds

These items may be combined
or taken as two standalone
reports.

N/A

Witnesses were
interviewed during the
Commission’s evidence
gathering

Ruth Hutt
Paul
Keenlyside
Simon
Phillips
Michael
Munnelly

Maria Burton

Page 75

Climate Change
Update (including
Road Safety)

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Cllr Mary Atkins was Chair of
the Commission



9 December 2021

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Lead Officer

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

Budget

Draft deadline: 19 November
Final deadline: 29 November
Agenda publication date: 1 December

Page 76



2 February 2022

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Lead Officer

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

Employment &
Skills Strategy one
year on
(Provisional)
Events Scrutiny
Commission 2nd
Update
(Provisional)

Page 77

Draft deadline: 13 January
Final deadline: 21 January
Agenda publication date: 25 January



24 March 2022 – Crime and Disorder (Provisional)

Item / topic

Safer Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report
(Provisional)

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Lead Officer

Draft deadline: 4 March
Final deadline: 14 March
Agenda publication date: 16 March

Issues for potential future scrutiny








Road safety – what the Council is doing to protect pedestrians and cyclists
Thames Water issues
Benefit process and complaints
Covid related expenditure and, subject to speaking to the Chair of Corporate Committee, work that has taken place to prevent covid support fraud
Violence affecting young people / youth violence (subject to speaking to the Chair of Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee)
Minnie Kidd House – see minutes from 14 July 2021 OSC for details
Care Homes Annual Report – see minutes from 14 July 2021 OSC for details

Page 78

Scrutiny Commissions
(More information on current commissions is contained in the OSC work programme report)
Title/Proposal

Status

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Maximising Benefits from Events

Concluded. Final report presented to Cabinet on 13 Jan 2020. First action plan
update Sept 2020, second update provisionally Sept 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods

In progress. Membership and scope agreed at Dec 2020 OSC; commission
meeting regularly. Final report scheduled for October 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Page 79

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Action Monitoring
30 January 2019: Transport / Digital Accessibility
Item
Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy
Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

Recommendation / Action
To support the work being done to explore the feasibility
of introducing a workplace parking levy in the borough and
request to be kept updated throughout the evidence
gathering and decision making process
That the Transport Strategy be amended to include
guidance on motorcycle parking provision and criteria for
interested residents

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

-

Response
Work stream delayed due to
Covid-19

To be picked up in the Kerbside
Strategy in 2021/22– timelines to
be confirmed.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

Simon
Phillips /
Kieran
Taylor

A

A

Simon
Phillips

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Andrew
Travers/
Fiona
Connolly

A

Ongoing

Andrew
Travers/
Fiona
Connolly

A

19 May 2020: Council Response to Covid-19
Item

Recommendation / Action

Council
Response to
Covid-19

That a focus be placed on mechanisms to support
residents experiencing food poverty in the borough

Council
Response to
Covid-19

That support be maintained to residents who are required
to shield as the initial crisis period eases

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
There is significant support in
place via the council and VCS
organisations supporting
vulnerable people to access food
and other forms of support. This
has been in place since the 23rd
March and continues.
Government Guidance has been
published which advises that for
those individuals who are
shielding currently Gov support
comes to an end from the 1st
August. The Council with other
partners will continue to support
individuals who are vulnerable
and the helpline that has been
established since COVID will
remain in place

Page 80

TBC

Item
Council
Response to
Covid-19
Council
Response to
Covid-19

Recommendation / Action
That further work be done to establish how vacant space
and additional space requirements be identified and
connected to support changes in working practices in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

That a review of the policy on evictions be conducted and
reported back to the committee, including a summary of
the views of key housing association partners and clarity
on the commitment that no evictions would take place
“during the pandemic”

Response

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

Andrew
Travers/
Neil
Euesden

A

Neil
Euesden

A

Page 81

Project Work to commence to
consolidate all information
including: location, facilities
available, current usage,
associated budgets etc
In respect of tenancies, we
continue to follow Government
direction on the suspension of
new evictions until 23 August.
This means that we are not
applying for any new warrants,
and we have not rescheduled any
evictions which were cancelled
due to COVID19. As a result, we
do expect to see arrears continue
to increase on these types of
cases and also on those where
we have exhausted all avenues of
collection and warrants are the
next stage. In terms of possession
cases, we can continue with those
cases that are still being listed at
Court, and we can send through
any new applications.

Deadline

16 July 2020: Budget / Climate Change
Item

Recommendation / Action

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the importance of learning from best practice be
highlighted, in particular the emissions baseline document
produced by Bristol City Council and the organisation and
transparency of the work being done by Devon Council to
implement its climate emergency plan

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Complete

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating

Updated (August 2021)
Accepted

The climate change programme
has, and continues, to draw on
learning and practice from other
councils, cities, and countries. As
the sector looks to accelerate
work to reach Net 0 there is a
strong emphasis on collaboration
and learning together. The

G

Item

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the committee endorses the innovative work being
done by the London Borough of Islington on heat transfer
and would like to see Lambeth explore similar approaches

Owner

RAG
rating

The Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
programme has used a range of
communication and engagement
methods. Face to face
engagement has been carried out
when public health advice has
permitted. This will continue
throughout the consultations.
Printed materials are used as well
as online meetings and website
information.

G

Complete

Hannah
Jameson /
Paul Bates

Page 82

Accepted

That the elimination of Glyphosate be accelerated and
consideration be given to an opt-in (rather than opt-out)
approach

Deadline

emissions report collects and
presents data consistently with
the LGA framework. It also
develops the borough-wide
analysis as recommended by
OSC.
Updated (August 2021)

To urge officers to ensure that the public are fully
engaged and consulted on the Citizens’ Assembly and
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods – including via a variety of
communications methods, not just online – and that such
communications be appropriately coordinated in order that
residents’ views on one can be used to inform the other.
This communications plan should be reported back to the
committee

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

Response

The citizens’ assembly did
consider what action would need
to be taken to reduce transport
related emissions. The
recommendations arising from
this will be considered by the
council and partners.
Updated (August 2021)
Complete

Accepted

The use of glyphosate on
Lambeth’s streets, parks and
open space, and housing estates
has now ceased.
The council has begun to develop
its energy strategy and will
identify relevant low carbon
energy opportunities as part of
this work. We expect the first
phase of work, to develop the
evidence base, to be completed in

Hannah
Jameson

G

A
Late 2021

Hannah
Jameson

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Nabeel
Khan

A

Oct 2021

Nabeel
Khan

A

N/A

Nabeel
Khan /
John
Bennett

A

June 2021

Eleanor
Purser/
Sara Waller

G

summer 2021 with options for
decarbonising heat to follow
shortly after.

23 September 2020: Economic Recovery
Accepted/
Rejected

Recommendation / Action

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That targeted support is needed to assist older people
(e.g. those over 50) who are out of work, such as training
and job search skills, and a review of current provision
should be carried out to ascertain whether suppliers have
sufficient knowledge and expertise to provide effective
support to this cohort

Accepted

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That the importance of optimising local spend to generate
social impact be highlighted and that clear targets be set
for increasing the amount of spend that is retained locally

Accepted

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That the committee is sympathetic to small businesses
trying to remain afloat through the pandemic, as well as
minor landlords, and wishes to see the Council taking
whatever action it can to ensure rent increases do not
lead to local firms going out of business

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &

That further transparency is needed regarding developer
contributions. This should include publishing details on the
Council website of where Community Infrastructure Levy
payments are generated and spent (over the last five
years in each ward); a list of projects funded by CIL, NCIL
and S106; and the criteria for each funding stream
That strategic approaches should be taken to maximising
5G connectivity, including working proactively with
providers to reduce the proliferation of masts

Accepted in
part

Accepted

Accepted

Response
Those aged over 50 are identified
as a priority group in the Skills
and Employment Strategy and will
benefit from actions focused on
providing high quality employment
support and addressing wider
barriers to employment.
The Enterprise & Economy
Strategic Programme Board will
be exploring the potential to set
local spend targets through the
council’s supply chain and
through new development s106
process.
The council is not able to take any
action in relationships between
commercial landlords and
tenants. Any business needing
advice can access the support
offered through the London
Business Hub.

Report taken to OSC on 7 June

Updated (August 2021)
The council adopted its digital
strategy in March 2021 and

Fiona
McDermott

G

Page 83

Item

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Employment
Strategy

That consideration be given to widening the scope of the
Opportunity Lambeth website to ensure it better connects
residents seeking work with appropriate jobs available in
the borough

Accepted

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

That the relative costs and benefits of social value
measures be calculated to ensure the focus is on those
initiatives which are proven to give rise to net positive
outcomes

Accepted

agreed an investment of £17m
across a range of programmes
and projects. The councils
property terms is in regular
dialogue with 5G providers in
relation to mast installations on
council property. Although not
enforceable due to the permissive
legislation round
telecommunications, the council is
writing to 5G providers to share
facilities and remove any
redundant equipment.
The feedback from the Committee
and during the development of the
Skills and Employment Strategy
has highlighted the need to
improve the user experience of
the Opportunity Lambeth website,
and to ensure it is used as a
single point of access for
promoting local job,
apprenticeship and work
experience opportunities. This will
be a priority for the coming six
months.
A comprehensive review of Social
Value at Lambeth Council was
carried out in January 2021. This
resulted in Management Board
approving an organisation-wide
approach to identifying,
measuring and monitoring social
value outcomes. Work is currently
underway to calculate the impact
of social value gains and prioritise
methods of deriving additional
value from contracts and
partnerships.

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Nabeel
Khan /
Alison May

A

Oct 2021

Paul Bates

A

Deadline
March 2021

Page 84

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Andrew
Eyres /
Fiona
Connolly /
Ruth Hutt

A

TBC

Paul Bates

A

December
2021

Andrew
Eyres

A

Ongoing

Paul Bates

TBC

Paul Bates

20 October 2020: Health and Social Care
Item

Recommendation / Action

That a better understanding is required regarding any
unmet social and health need due to Covid-19, together
with robust systems to monitor and address such need.

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That the valuable coordinating role of Voluntary and
Community Sector organisations be recognised, and that
appropriate support be provided to the sector, especially
those organisations experiencing difficulties with their own
volunteers and workforce.

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care
Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care
Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care
Annual Public
Health Report:

That partnership-based support mechanisms in local
communities involving stakeholders such as Primary Care
Networks and ward councillors are integral to addressing
health inequalities and delivering more integrated health
and care in Lambeth and such approaches should be
supported.
That the Committee be kept up to date with resident
survey data, including the Pulse survey and future
research work, as and when this becomes available.
That messaging regarding vulnerable residents and their
entitlements (for example, with regards to exemptions
from certain Covid-19 guidelines) be clarified.
To note and commend the report; however, to request
that the Committee is given future oversight of the

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

The contribution of the sector is
widely recognised and
acknowledged and will continue to
be a key part of our work on
Covid-19 and vaccine. A
refreshed VCS strategy will be
confirmed in 2021 (timings TBC).
Neighbourhood Alliance
developing local networks which
will include key health, social care
and VCS partners and will actively
involve ward councillors.
This is agreed in principle.
Officers will liaise further with
members regarding desired
format and timings.
Officers will look into this in more
depth and report back.
We will ensure that in future OSC
has access to these reports which

A

A

Page 85

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

The Integrated Council and CCG
Health and Care Team, working
with Lambeth Together partners,
will continue to assess population
need alongside, access to care,
referrals and the take up of
services on an ongoing basis, in
order to assess unmet care
needs.

Item

Recommendation / Action
quarterly Public Health reports to Health & Wellbeing
Board.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That more transparency and communication are needed
on the necessary fiscal trade-offs inherent in actions to
tackle climate change and how to mitigate them in future.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That a whole Council approach be taken to the public
health and climate change challenge, and that the
Citizens’ Assembly informs that response.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That the effectiveness of the partnership with Thames
Water be monitored to ensure it results in a reduction in
flooding and improvements to the environment.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That joined up working is required between the Thames
Water partnership referred to by officers and existing
ongoing dialogue between the local MP, ward councillors
and Thames Water.

Public Health Grant
Allocation and
Budget Summary
OSC Work
Programme

To endorse the call for PrEP funding to be continued.

To consider a review of customer service approximately
three months after the reopening of the reconfigured

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted in
part

Accepted in
part

Accepted

Accepted

Response
are a matter of public record as
part of the HWB board papers. It
should be noted that due to the
Covid19 response the PH
quarterly reports have not been
done for the first half of 20/21 but
we will develop an extended 2-3
quarter version and re-establish
the quarterly pattern.
This sits within the overall climate
change and sustainable growth
agenda not within public health –
but should be picked up as part of
the Citizens’ Assembly and further
development of local strategy.
Public Health are members of the
Climate Change Board and the
part of the objective of the
Citizens’ Assembly is to explore
exactly the wider issues which
cover council wide
responsibilities.
Agreed. To be aware, the
partnership is intended to reduce
the risk of surface water flooding.
This does not include flooding
arising from leaks.
Officers will find out about existing
conversations. However, it should
be clear that the strategic
partnership is addressing surface
water flood risk and not flooding
arising from leaks. This is a
separate part of Thames Water
that deals with this.
Currently funded for 2020/21. No
announcement for 21/22 on
Public Health funding.
To be considered in conjunction
with second update of

Deadline

Owner

Jan 2021

Ruth Hutt

RAG
rating
G

Hannah
Jameson

A

Ruth Hutt /
Hannah
Jameson

A

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

A

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

A

April 2021

Ruth Hutt

A

March 2021

Gary O’Key

A

TBC

TBC

Page 86

Climate Change
and Health

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

customer centre (potentially at the OSC meeting
scheduled for 23 March 2021).

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Christina
Thompson

A

Ongoing

Fiona
McDermott

A

July 2021

Kevin
Crook

G

Accessibility of Council Digital
Services Scrutiny Commission

9 December 2020: Budget / Homes for Lambeth Governance
Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That the committee is concerned at the plans for a whole
Council structural review in 2022-24 and the adverse
effect this may have on service delivery, and in particular
on low paid and BAME staff. The committee therefore
requests further detail on these proposals as and when
they emerge and urges the Council leadership to consult
with and empower staff throughout the process, both via
the trade unions and directly

Accepted

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That a thorough options appraisal be carried out regarding
the future of the leisure contract, including consideration
of an in-house option

Accepted

Appendix 4 of the Revenue and
Capital Budget to Cabinet and
Council provides the current year
fees and charges budgets and the
forecast outturn. Budget and
Performance Monitoring is
reported to Cabinet on a quarterly
basis.
Work is underway to identify
possible savings, though this is at
an early stage. Further detail will
be provided to the committee in
future months as details become
clearer

A thorough options appraisal has
been completed. From the longlist of options, two emerged as
most favourable and appropriate
for Lambeth - an in-house model
and an external concessions
contract. Evaluation is underway
and this will form the core of a
Cabinet decision report which is
scheduled for Cabinet. The report
will recommended a preferred
option for leisure services delivery
post from April 2022 and then
detailed procurement reports and

Page 87

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That the committee notes the heavy reliance on income
generation (particularly in Resident Services) to address
the budget gap and requests further updates on how
these proposals are progressing against stated targets,
including the impact of raising fees and charges on users
and the take-up of services

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Christina
Thompson

A

Ongoing

Christina
Thompson

A

Sept 2021

Sandra
Roebuck

G

an implementation plan will be
produced for later in the year.

Accepted

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That the committee notes the bigger than usual lag in
capital investment spend this year due to the pandemic
and requests further updates on the capital programme to
monitor how this is addressed

Accepted

That the committee supports the expansion of HMO
licensing as a means of both raising housing standards
and generating income, and requests further details of the
options being considered, including the projected revenue

Accepted

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Page 88

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

That the committee supports the intention to maintain an
appropriate level of reserves in order to safeguard the
Council’s viability and enable the authority to continue
effective service delivery, in particular those services
aimed at the most vulnerable, and requests further future
updates regarding the reserves position

Update (August 2021) – work is
now complete and a report is
scheduled for Cabinet
consideration in September 2021.
Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003 requires
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
(in Lambeth’s case the Director of
Finance) to report to the Authority
on two areas:
a)The robustness of the
estimates made for the
purpose of the calculations
b)The adequacy of the
proposed reserves
See paragraph 2.74 of the
Revenue and Capital Budget to
Cabinet and Council 8 February
2021 and 3 March 2021
Budget and Performance
Monitoring is reported to Cabinet
on a quarterly basis and includes
the monitoring of the capital
programme.
Update (August 2021)
The proposal to extend HMO
licensing was consulted on in late
2020/early 2021. A report
proposing adoption is scheduled
to be agreed by the Cabinet
Member for Housing and
Homelessness in August. There is
a 3 month stand still period so the
new licensing regime will be live
in November 2021.

Item

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That the committee reiterates the necessity for ongoing
scrutiny and oversight of Homes for Lambeth. This should
include regular reports back to the committee and to
Corporate Committee, on the structure and progress of
projects, and performance against KPIs.

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A

Sept 2021

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A

Reporting is provided to the
Council through the Ownership
and Stewardship Panel on the
progress of projects and
performance against KPIs. These
meetings are being held more
frequently (quarterly) and papers
for these meetings are published
online here.
Accepted
A comprehensive new
performance report is being
developed which includes project
progress and performance
against KPIs. This new report
standard will be used for
presentations as a matter of
routine.

Page 89

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Recommendation / Action

The review of Ownership and
Stewardship Panel is on-going,
and has been informed by the
external governance review
undertaken by Bevan Brittan.
That the committee requests a further review of the OSP
and for the terms of reference to be circulated to the
committee.

Accepted

That a more structured approach to resident involvement
is required, with residents on project boards, and wider
Lambeth forums and with leaseholder and tenant
representatives on the Homes for Lambeth board.

Accepted in
part (see
response)

The updated Shareholder
Agreement was executed on 12
April 2021. Further changes to
this agreement, including an
update of the OSP Terms of
Reference will be brought to OSP
for consideration and shared with
the committee once finalised
The approach to resident Board
recruitment will be set out in
HFL’s Resident Engagement
Strategy which will be presented
for approval in July.

Aug 2021
On-going for
resident
engagement

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

RAG
rating

In addition benchmarking
research is being conducted to
look at the approach to resident
Board Members within similar
organisations and LA wholly
owned companies. The
benchmarking will be considered
by HFL’s Remuneration &
Nominations Committee in July.

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

To request an update on future board structures, ideally
including an organogram, and details of increased
reporting to the council.

That the committee be updated on any proposals for
Homes for Lambeth to become a community benefit
society.

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That any material changes to financial predictions,
including income, expenditure and additional funding
requirements, be brought to the attention of the committee
as and when they occur.

Accepted

Accepted

Updates on any changes to the
Homes for Lambeth Board
structure will be reported to
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel, along with the regular
reporting referred to above.
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel papers will be published
online here in the usual way and
will be available for members of
OSC to review
Should Homes for Lambeth wish
to progress with plans to become
a community benefit society then
Officers will ensure that the
committee is updated.
Material changes in the financial
plans for the HFL programme –
the HFL annual Business Plan
and the Joint Delivery Plan – as
approved prior to the start of each
financial year will be brought to
the Committee for information and
discussion, in a similar fashion to
the finance presentation in July
2020.

A

Page 90

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Accepted

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Annual

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A

A

23 March 2021: Crime and Disorder
Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

The local authority play a key role
in supporting effective working of
the police in this process.
Details are being collated to
explain the process and will be
shared in due course.

2. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That a thorough and widely publicised process be
established to enable local organisations and individuals
to work effectively with the police, especially regarding the
needs of young people and women, when seeking to
organise future events such as vigils or protests

Both websites (below) contain
information, advice and contact
information. On the Met website
there is an online form and this
then routes the enquiry to the
appropriate team or borough.
https://eventlambeth.co.uk/organi
sing/planning-your-event/
https://www.met.police.uk/tua/tellus-about/eo/af/eventsprocessions/
Where additional support is
required, this should be flagged in
the application process.

Page 91

UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The process and information in
relation to events is publicised by
Lambeth Council (who will link in
with the Police) and by The Met
Police, who would similarly link
with Council colleagues.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

A

The BCU has developed an
engagement plan in line with the
Met Engagement plan devised by
Commander Ali Heydari; The
Mayor’s Action Plan; & local
strategies including Lambeth
Made Safer & Southwark Stands
Together. Links to these are
below:

Mayor’s Action Plan:
https://www.london.gov.uk/publi
cations/action-plan-transparencyaccountability-and-trustpolicing#actions
That the police be urged to assess whether existing
practices are conducive to building and maintaining trust
and confidence, and consider what more might be done to
improve this (for example, work with the relevant Lambeth
Made Safer work stream and ensure all officers are aware
of the importance of this work stream)

Southwark Stands Together:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/e
ngagement-andconsultations/tackling-racialinequalities-racism-and-injusticesouthwark-stands-together
Lambeth Made Safer:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.
uk/documents/s122975/Appendi
x%20A%20%20Lambeth%20Made%20Safer
%20Strategy%20v19.pdf
We are still waiting for details of
the Met Engagement plan devised
by Commander Ali Heydari.
The BCU Commander has now
attended every Lambeth Made
Safer Community Forum with the

Page 92

8. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Cabinet Lead for Jobs, Skills &
Community Safety demonstrating
the level of commitment to
engaging with residents and
improve community safety and
address underlying issues that
contribute to crime and ASB
including Environment; Health;
Employment; Education;
Inequalities.

The review of the Safer
Neighbourhood Ward Panels is
part of the Mayor’s Action Plan
(link above).
As part of the reinvigoration of the
Ward Panels, the Metropolitan
Police Service has recently issued
guidance to the Ward panels on
priority setting. The guidance
seems to have been well
received.
At present we do not have any
hard timelines for the completion
of the review.

Page 93

The MPS and BCU is reviewing
effectiveness and support for local
Safer Neighbourhood Ward
panels including refreshing
priorities, empowering local
officers to use data and statistics
in a meaningful way to drive
action and outcomes suited to
local communities. Details of
timelines and objectives will be
shared with the Committee when
available.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

A

With this in mind, details of this
review process will be shared with
the OSC in due course.
Data on stop and search in
Lambeth can be found here:
https://www.met.police.uk/sd/stats
-and-data/met/stop-and-searchdashboard/
Lambeth experiences some of the
highest rates of violence and knife
crime in London. The positive
outcome rate for stop and search
has averaged 26% in 2021 this is
a 4% improvement on same
period in 2020. Stop and search
remains an important and
effective response to knife crime,
robbery and violence, and drivers
of crime such as drug offending. It
is one tool as part of a range of
police and partnership
interventions and activity.
The BCU is developing a stop and
search improvement plan, with
insight and feedback from
community members and
organisations such as Black
Thrive and through the Lambeth
Made Safer Disrupt and Deter
work stream. This is to improve
overall quality of encounter and
seek greater local community
feedback, scrutiny and
involvement. The Improvement
Plan should be approved by the
end of June and will be shared
with the Committee when
available.

Page 94

11. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the latest Lambeth stop and search data (to include
statistics on complaints received and details of
subsequent action taken) be shared with the committee
together with the justification for continuing with the
current stop and search strategy given the low incidence
of positive outcomes

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Pippa
Beeston
(National
Probation
Service)

A

UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The Plan has been reviewed by
both the Lambeth Made Safer
Implementation Board and
Strategy board this month (June).
The Plan is being shared with Cllr
Dyer this week (w/c Monday 28th
June) to review. Once feedback
has been collated from across this
review process, the LMS
Programme Manager will liaise
with the Disrupt and Deter
workstream lead (DS Neerav
Patel) with regards to sharing the
plan – including forwarding the
document with the OSC.

That further information be requested from the Probation
service regarding any potential issues which may affect
commissioned services during the reintegration process,
and how any potential risks are being managed

Accepted

The unification of the Probation
services commenced on Saturday
26th June 2021. There will be 12
probation regions across England
and Wales (11 in England and
Wales) each overseen by a
Regional Probation Director.
London has its own regional
director, with Lambeth being part
of the SE London district. Pippa
Beeston remains as part of the
borough’s governance structure,
taking the role of Head of
Probation Delivery Unit –
Lambeth.
Services previously delivered by
the CRC (Community
Rehabilitation Companies) have
been absorbed into the unified
Probation Service with staff being
transferred in the process to allow
for continuity of service. For

Page 95

13. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

OSC

A

Aug 2021

Nataša
Patterson

G

example, Unpaid Work
(Community Payback) that is now
under the remit of the HM Prison
and Probation Service will build
on the innovative work delivered
by CRCs.
If the OSC or colleagues would
like to nominate a community
project for Community Payback,
please use the following email
address: CP_@justice.gov.uk.

To request a further paper to OSC at a future meeting on
customer service standards

That information on the Lambeth website regarding the
council structure and employee information/contact details
be enhanced and standardised

To be considered by committee
when determining work
programme for 2021/22

Accepted

The basic Council structure and
organisational chart covering
senior management grades are
currently published on the
Lambeth website. In addition it is
proposed to review and improve
our active directory, automated
switchboard and revisit our
Contact Us page.
Update (Sept 2021) - As a part of
the overall call centre technology
improvements, where we are
looking to implement new cloud
based and AI empowered
solution, we will review all
customer journeys and overall
access to services, which would
give improved experience to
residents and easier access to

Page 96

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update
Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update

Item

Lambeth Scrutiny
Review

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To approve the action plan set out at Appendix 2.
Accepted

Response
services. It is not envisaged that
full employee information other
than published ones will be in
scope, however, these
improvements should reduce the
need for individual officers.
Current plan will see these
delivered in phases by the end of
the year.
Actions to be taken forward by
committee members and
Democratic Services as outlined
in the action plan

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

To be
implemented
throughout
2021/22

OSC /
Dem Servs

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

September
2021

Rob
Bristow

G

TBC
(Discussions
currently
taking place
with Strategy
and Comms
Team)

Rob
Bristow

A

TBC (subject
to
Government

Rob
Bristow

A

A

7 June 2021: Developer Contributions / Responsible Procurement

Developer
Contributions

Recommendation / Action

That the CLIP approach be revised to ensure the
proceeds of growth are shared across the whole borough,
with a focus on the most deprived areas

Developer
Contributions

To ensure there is a transparent and democratic localised
consultative mechanism for identifying NCIL priorities
outside of Neighbourhood Plans

Developer
Contributions

That the committee requests further information regarding
the likely impact of the Government White Paper on
Lambeth and that steps are taken to ensure local people
can continue to have a say over how CIL is allocated

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
In essence this is what the new
proposals agreed by Cabinet on
the 5th July do. The agreed
proposals revise the approach to
NCIL such that the whole of the
borough is regarded as the local
area, which enables spend to take
place on the basis of need. See
Para 2.14 (b) of the Cabinet
Report from 5/7/21 in this regard.
This is also secured through the
new proposals agreed by Cabinet
(see para 2.12 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21 for details of the
strengthened local consultation
mechanisms)
At the time of writing (August
2021) further details are still
awaited from Government on how
the White Paper proposals will be

Page 97

Item

Item

Developer
Contributions

That further information be provided regarding the
Community Connections fund, including how success will
be measured

That a strategy is needed regarding changes in the use of
space as a result of the pandemic, both in terms of
working and where people choose to live

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
implemented. Once these are
published officers will be able to
produce further analysis on the
likely impacts on Lambeth. In
respect of ensuring local people
can continue to have influence
over the allocation of CIL, this will
be achieved through the
strengthened consultation
mechanisms mentioned in para
2.12 of the Cabinet Report – and
the priorities that emerge from this
process will in turn be taken into
account in allocation decisions by
the Council.
At the time of writing, details of
the Community Connections Fund
are still being worked up in
discussion with the relevant
members of Cabinet – details can
be shared with OSC once
available.

The Draft Revised Lambeth Local
Plan, which will be reported to
Cabinet and Full Council in
September for adoption, is the
lead strategy for the Council in
this regard, and has recently been
declared sound by a Government
Inspector following an
Examination in Public. This
document has been informed by a
raft of evidence including the new
London Plan (adopted earlier this
year) and our own JLL office
study which advised on the future
of office space in the borough
following the pandemic.

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC –
subject to
ongoing
discussions
with the
relevant
Cabinet
member/The
Leader

Rob
Bristow

A

September
2021

Rob
Bristow

A

Deadline
pronouncem
ents)

Page 98

Developer
Contributions

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Developer
Contributions

That a more detailed breakdown is required going forward
of how developer contributions are accrued and spent, to
ward level

Rejected

Developer
Contributions

To ensure spending on infrastructure is properly managed
at a project level in order that schemes which are
overspending can be readily identified and issues
addressed

Accepted

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure the Responsible Procurement policy is applied
in an effective and transparent manner, including setting
tangible targets on social value priorities, spot checks on
compliance, appropriate training for all contract managers
in using the electronic contract management system,

Accepted

This recommendation was
carefully considered but ultimately
not accepted for the reasons set
out at para. 2.11 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21.
Spending by project is managed
in accordance with the Council’s
established financial management
systems, and is undertaken by the
relevant project team with
oversight from Finance and the
relevant Directorate Management
Team or Transformation Board.
In addition a new Capital
Programme Board is being set up
from October this year to monitor
capital spending across
programmes to ensure that
spending is optimised and any
overspends/underspends can be
appropriately addressed.
Measures to achieve greater
transparency around spending
decisions for developer
contributions and demonstrating
that these are linked to resident
priorities were agreed by Cabinet,
and the measures to achieve this
are set out in paras 2.12 and 2.13
of the Cabinet Report of 5/7/21;
with greater accountability
ensured through more detailed
reporting to Cabinet, as set out in
para 2.15 of the report.
The council is committed to
ensure that the Responsible
Procurement policy is consistently
applied across all procurement
activity and that we are able to
proactively report on deliverables

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Rob
Bristow

R

October
2021

Rob
Bristow

A

TBC – this is
subject to
discussions
on the timing
of
implementati
on of these
measures
with Strategy
and Comms
colleagues
and Finance
colleagues

Rob
Bristow

A

March 2022

Genine
Whitehorne

A

Page 99

Developer
Contributions

That greater transparency is needed regarding the
decision making process for spending developer
contributions, including how these link to resident views
and relevant policy priorities (for example, Borough Plan
outcomes)

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

transparency of data to the maximum extent possible, and
penalties for failing to meet social value targets.

To consult with staff regarding their views on working
conditions when a contract change results in them
working under a different company

Accepted

and impact. As such the
responsible procurement is an
integral part of the development of
a new corporate contract
management framework which
will include comprehensive
guidance materials and training
for contract managers. Phase 2
of the development of the
council’s new electronic
management system (eCMS) will
enable more efficient reporting
against responsible procurement
commitments. The contract
management will include clear
guidance for the effective
management of contracts
including non-performance. This
will be further supported by the
development of a new
Commercial Advisory team
supporting contract managers
with complex performance issues.
For all contracts that may impact
staff working on the existing
service, the council must consider
whether Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment)
regulations (TUPE)
applies. Where TUPE does
apply, the employer (this may be
the council where a contract has
previously been delivered inhouse or another third party
contractor) must consult
employees or their
representatives about anything to
do with the transfer that could
affect them. The council works
with incumbent providers and new

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

G

Page 100

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To ensure a process is in place to review social value
commitments and associated KPIs whenever a contract is
renewed

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure contracts are monitored to ensure commitment
to and compliance with the modern slavery charter

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That Trade Union membership and involvement be
championed for staff employed under Council contracts

Accepted

contractors to ensure transition
and mobilisation of new services
are effectively managed and the
impact to workers is mitigated
wherever possible.
The contract management
framework will include clear
guidance regarding review of
contracts as part of the annual
review process and at key
contract milestones including
when enacting an option to
extend.
Compliance against modern
slavery charter will be built into
the contract management
assurance framework and form
part of annual contract reviews.
The council ensures that all
potential contractors adhere to
appropriate employment
legislation and regulations as part
of the procurement process. This
includes the legal right for
collective participation and to join
a Trade Union. The Council is
keen to ensure Trade Unions can
function effectively within
Lambeth, and that they have
access to the information they
need to function effectively. As
such the council is committed to
protecting Trade Union rights and
will support workers to ensure
they have information about their
rights. However, we consider it to
be an individual’s right to choose
whether or not they wish to join a
Trade Union. champion trade
union membership.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

A

Oct 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

A

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

G

Page 101

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That clarity be provided to the committee regarding the
ability of the Council to use its leverage via responsible
procurement to secure wider societal and environmental
benefits beyond local authority borders under current law.
This includes looking at the past record of organisations to
assess their suitability, requiring adherence to Council
policies and practice, and encouraging contractors to pay
the London Living Wage to its entire workforce (not just
those working as part of the Lambeth contract)

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

The Public Services (Social
Value) Act, 2012 provides the
legislative framework for the
council’s Responsible
Procurement Policy. The
council’s social value duty is
balanced by obligations to ensure
fair and open competition as set
out in the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 which state,
inter alia, that award criteria must
be ‘linked to the subject matter’ of
the contract in question, must be
contract-specific, and must not
be aimed at assessing the
business or corporate policies of
the tenderer. In considering how,
in conducting the process of
procurement, it might act with a
view to
securing the improvement of the
economic, social and
environmental well-being of its
area, the Public Services (Social
Value) Act requires that the
procuring authority must consider
only matters that are relevant to
what is proposed to be procured.
Further, in doing so, it must
consider the extent to which it is
proportionate in all the
circumstances to take those
matters into account. As such the
council does not legally have the
ability to require contractors to
pay LLW beyond Lambeth
specific contracts and cannot
consider other reputational factors
beyond those directly related to
the ability to deliver the a specific

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

G

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Page 102

(To provide
clarity)

Response

Item

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

That a clear process is required to demonstrate how the
aims of the Responsible Procurement policy link to other
Council priorities and strategies (such as the Borough
Plan)

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To endorse the Preston model as a means of prioritising
the needs of local business and the community

Accepted

contract. Additionally, the council
has very little commercial
leverage to influence supplier
behaviour beyond delivery of
Lambeth specific contracts
In March 2021 work was carried
out to link the Responsible
Procurement policy with
Lambeth’s Societal Impact
Framework that the Council has
developed. This framework
reflects the Council’s priority
areas set out in key strategies
(including the Borough Plan as
well as the UN Sustainable
Development Goals). Section 9
of the current Policy sets out how
it supports the Borough Plan. At
the policy’s next review point, the
intention is to align the language
in the Responsible Procurement
policy to this framework and
create further opportunities for
social and environmental benefits
through procurement. This work
will be completed alongside
strategy and policy leads from
across the Council.
Further guidance is being
developed to support the update
of the Responsible Procurement
Policy. This will include a number
of case studies showcasing best
practice (both internal and
external). It is important to
recognise that the approach in
Lambeth already exceeds the
outcomes achieved in Preston
however these successes are not

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

A

Oct 2021

Dec 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Genine
Whitehorne

Page 103

Accepted

Response

A

Item

Recommendation / Action

That the Council should actively consider insourcing
services whenever feasible

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure the Transformation & Efficiency Champion is
fully involved in the coordination of responsible
procurement with related initiatives such as societal
impact of spend and the performance management and
appraisal process, and to request a future report back on
how this is working

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure an appropriate balance is struck between value
for money and social value commitments in the
procurement system

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
effectively communicated. The
case studies will help to more
effectively share the learning, As
a part of this process, it is
intended to include further
information on external models
(including the Preston example).
When commissioning services it
is already mandatory that a range
of options are considered as part
of developing the business case.
These options include assessing
the council’s ability to deliver the
services in-house. This options
appraisal will be further
strengthened by new guidance
that will provide commissioners /
service managers with more
information about factors to
consider when undertaking a
make or buy assessment.
The Transformation & Efficiency
Champion is already well
engaged in discussions regarding
our approach. This will continue
as work develops and the
Champion will be invited to be an
active participant in the update of
the Policy to inform and shape
priorities going forward.
Social value is an important
consideration in our procurement
activity. When evaluating
tenders, it is important that careful
consideration is given to the split
between price and quality as part
of the evaluation methodology.
This split will vary depending on
the type of services being
procured and the way in which is

Deadline

Owner

Dec 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

March 2021

Oct 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Genine
Whitehorne

RAG
rating

A

Page 104

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Accepted/
Rejected

A

A

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To review the role of consultant advisors in the tender
process to ensure value for money and transparent
delivery of social value commitments

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That the Opportunity Lambeth website be significantly
enhanced and that all jobs arising from procurement
activities be advertised on the site

Accepted

it being sourced. It has recently
been agreed to introduce a
mandatory 10% social value
criteria for all procurements over
£500k. Social value must be
included as part of the evaluation
methodology for procurements
below £500k though the
percentage will be decided as
appropriate for the type and value
of contract being awarded.
Consultants and specialist
advisors play an important role in
many of our procurement
projects. For very complex or
technical areas it is vital that the
council benefits from expert
knowledge in order to ensure the
best outcomes are delivered for
Lambeth residents. The Council
has recently established a new
Commercial and Advisory team
creating greater internal capability
to assess commercial
opportunities. The use of external
consultants should always be
assessed to ensure it represents
best value and to determine how
social value commitments can be
supported. Consultants must
adhere to council policies.
The ‘Opportunity Lambeth’
service has secured £150,000
capital funding to further develop
its digital functions and will
commence development once
project manager is in place. The
Skills and Employment team
remain committed to advertising
all employment opportunities

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Genine
Whitehorne

A

Genine
Whitehorne

A

Page 105

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Dec 2021

Item

Recommendation / Action

That more consistency is required regarding data
collection and publication and that the establishment of a
monitoring committee to oversee social value
commitments be considered

OSC Work
Programme

That the following items be considered for inclusion in the
work programme for the 2021-22 municipal term:
Issues with Thames Water
Benefit process and complaints
Road traffic collisions/road safety

Accepted

Response
arising from procurement
activities. We are now working to
establish a corporate approach to
ensure that the team are notified
of these new opportunities in a
timely fashion and that we have a
consistent approach to monitoring
outcomes. The Skills and
Employment division have
ringfenced resource to support
this activity.
Data and reporting are being
addressed as part of the further
development of eCMS. The
governance of the reporting is yet
to be decided and the
appropriateness of the
establishment of a monitoring
committee will be considered.
However, it is important to
understand the role, purpose and
remit of such a committee. This
will be considered in consultation
with the lead Cabinet Member
and the Transformation and
efficiency champion.
Items added to the future work
programme .

Accepted

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Dec 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

A

Democratic
Services

G

Page 106

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Accepted/
Rejected

April 2022

14 July 2021: Care Home Provision and Delivery in Lambeth
Item
Care Home
Provision and

Recommendation / Action
To improve person centred care planning and ensure
care pathways were joined up and understood by the
public, Adult Social Care should:

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Jane
Bowie/Fiona
Connolly

A

Item
Delivery in
Lambeth

Recommendation / Action
-

-

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Develop guidance, including a plain English route
map, to help service users and carers navigate the
system;
Provide a single point of contact for questions about
care home provision and delivery in Lambeth; and
Ensure each care home resident had a dedicated
point of contact so both service users and carers
know who to contact if they have a question about
their care.

The Council’s support for care homes during the
coronavirus pandemic, including the provision of advice,
guidance, training and equipment, be commended.
Care homes and carers be thanked for providing service
users with outstanding support during the coronavirus
pandemic.
The Council introduces a care worker of the year award,
to recognise the outstanding care provided across the
borough.
Adult Social Care work across the Council and with
colleagues and partners, including providers, to raise the
profile of the work done by care homes and promote
opportunities for a career in care homes.
To aid recruitment, to investigate whether it would be
possible for Opportunity Lambeth to work with Care
Homes across the borough.

The Council sign up to UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
and ensure those working in care homes receive
payment of their salary for periods when they are on sick
leave, are given appropriate training, receive regular
appraisals/pay reviews and feel supported.

Response
1. Producing guidance
including a map
2. Establishing a SPoC for all
care home residents

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Letter to Council officers
providing support, public health
and commissioners
Letter to all care homes
including message for care staff

Establish award event, to align
with Council staff awards, for
2022 with nominations including
from sector for 21-22
Through NWDA multi-agency
workstream

Accepted

Owner

RAG
rating

September
2021

Jane Bowie

A

September
2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

A

July 2022

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

A

ongoing

Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

A

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

A

Jane Bowie

A

Deadline
1. Guidance
– March
2022
2. December
2021

Investigate potential
Accepted

Under
consideration

January 2022
UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
relates to home care not care
home services – the regulator
CQC and commissioners retain
oversight that care home staff
do remain supported including
through completion of appraisals
and provision of training and
adoption of all the remaining
elements of the Charter for

Page 107

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

home care services is currently
under political consideration.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Build on review report
completed by public health April
2021 by collating views /
experiences of residents and
carers to produce 1 composite
report

Confirm every care home has
appropriate complaints policy
and procedure in place
Confirm all care homes have
whistleblowing policy in place
and staff are made aware of
how to access
Confirm all care homes have
regular resident and carer
meetings in place and systems
to ensure views of residents
without visitors get captured

July 2022

Jane
Bowie/Ese
Lyasere/

A

Healthwatch
?

October 2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

A

October 2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

A

October 2021

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

A

September
2022

Jane Bowie

A

To draft as supplement to
annual ASC complaints report.

Accepted

Page 108

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Lessons learnt in relation to Covid-19 should be shared
with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee within 6 – 12
months. This should cover matters in relation to both
care home provision and delivery during the pandemic,
with input from service users and carers. To ensure
service users and carers are listened to and heard,
thought should be given to the methodology that is used,
and by who, to capture these experiences.
All care homes should have a clear, transparent and well
publicised complaints procedure, setting out how to raise
concerns freely and confidentially, who to contact and
how to appeal.
To help create an atmosphere where workers feel able
to report concerns, the Council should ensure all care
homes have a whistleblowing policy and ensure staff are
aware that they can raise concerns freely and
confidentially.
The Council ensures all care homes hold regular
meetings for families and carers, with suitable
safeguards established to support, and hear from,
residents who are not visited/supported by friends or
family.
An annual report on care homes be provided to both
Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet to provide details
on:
Monitoring and inspection, including data from the
Care Quality Commission (CQC) and Lambeth’s
own commissioners;
How CQC ratings in Lambeth compared to other
boroughs;
The challenges and opportunities for staff and
service providers – including information on staffing
levels, vacancies and future staffing requirements;
The experiences of service users and carers,
including feedback on the care and services
received;

Item

Recommendation / Action
-

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

The number of complaints received as well as
lessons learnt; and
The impact of Brexit and Covid-19, including the
supply of personal protective equipment (PPE).

A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd House, setting
out care provided, environmental issues, including work
required for the building to be compliant with fire safety
standards, and next steps, be considered by Overview
and Scrutiny at a future committee meeting, with input
from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.
To help maximise health and wellbeing in care homes,
schemes that increase community interaction and
encourage residents to get involved in local activities,
including interaction with ward councillors, should be
supported.
An officer briefing on future care models be provided to
Councillors.

Accepted

TBA

TBA

To be included in NWDA
workstream (action no. 5)
Accepted

Accepted

Ongoing

Briefing with outline timelines to
be presented

January 2022

Jane Bowie

A

Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

A

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

A

Page 109

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected

This page is intentionally left blank

